

Tender Specifications

TZA22003-10234

Public works contract for Access to water supply for WASH Facilities and Dormitories

Belgian development agency

enabel.be

Table of contents

1	ADMINISTRATIVE AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS	5
	1.1 DEROGATIONS FROM THE ROYAL DECREE OF 14 JANUARY 2013	5
	1.2 CONTRACTING AUTHORITY.	5
	1.3 INSTITUTIONAL FRAMEWORK OF ENABEL	5
	1.4 RULES GOVERNING THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	6
	1.5 DEFINITIONS	6
	1.6 CONFIDENTIALITY	7
	1.6.1 Processing of personal data	7
	1.7 DEONTOLOGICAL OBLIGATIONS	
	1.8 APPLICABLE LAW AND COMPETENT COURTS	8
2	SUBJECT-MATTER AND SCOPE OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	9
	2.1 Type of contract	9
	2.2 SUBJECT-MATTER OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	9
	2.3 Lots	9
	2.4 ITEMS	
	2.5 DURATION OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	9
	2.6 QUANTITIES	
3	PROCEDURE	10
	3.1 AWARD PROCEDURE	10
	3.2 Publication	10
	3.3 Information	10
	3.4 TENDER	10
	3.4.1 Data to be included in the tender	
	3.4.2 Period the tender is valid	
	3.4.4 Elements included in the price	11
	3.4.5 How to submit tenders	
	3.4.7 Opening of Tenders	13
	3.5 SELECTION OF TENDERERS	13
	3.5.1 Exclusion grounds	13
	3.5.2 Selection criteria	
	3.6 OVERVIEW OF THE PROCEDURE	
	3.7 AWARD CRITERIA	
	3.8 AWARDING THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	
	3.9 CONCLUDING THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	
_		
4	SPECIFIC CONTRACTUAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONS	
	4.1 DEFINITIONS (ART. 2)	
	4.2 USAGE OF DIGITAL MEANS (ART. 10)	
	4.3 MANAGING OFFICIAL (ART. 11)	15

	4.4 SUBC	ONTRACTORS (ART. 12 TO 15)	16
	4.5 CONF	IDENTIALITY (ART. 18)	16
	4.6 PERS	ONAL DATA PROTECTION	17
	4.7 INTEI	LECTUAL PROPERTY (ART. 19 TO 23)	17
		RANCE (ART. 24)	
	-	ORMANCE BOND (ART. 25 TO 33)	
	4.10	CONFORMITY OF PERFORMANCE (ART. 34)	
	-	, documents and objects prepared by the contracting authority (Art. 35)	
	4.10.2 Detai	led plans and work plans prepared by the contractor (Art. 36)	19
		onstruction planning	
		aster planerformance documents	
		stablishment of "As Built" plans	
	4.11	CHANGES TO THE PUBLIC CONTRACT (ART. 37 TO 38/19 AND 80)	21
	4.12	CONTROL AND SUPERVISION OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACT	23
		control and supervision (Art. 39)	
		cceptance procedures (Art. 41)	
		ry technical acceptance (Art. 42) hnical acceptance (Art. 43)	
	4.13	PERFORMANCE PERIOD (ART. 76)	
	4.14	PROVISION OF LAND (ART. 77)	
	4.15	LABOUR CONDITIONS (ART. 78)	
	4.16	ORGANISATION OF THE CONSTRUCTION SITE (ART. 79)	
	4.17	MEANS OF CONTROL (ART. 82)	
	4.18	Works Logbook (Art. 83)	25
	4.19	LIABILITY OF THE BUILDING CONTRACTOR (ART. 84)	26
	4.20	ZERO TOLERANCE SEXUAL EXPLOITATION AND ABUSE	26
	4.21 85-88)	MEANS OF ACTION OF THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY (ART. 44-51 26	AND
	4.21.1 Failu	re of performance (Art. 44)	26
		lties (Art. 45) for delay (Art. 46 et seq. and 86)	
	-	MEASURES AS OF RIGHT (ART. 47 AND 87)	
	4.22	ons (Art. 48)	
		ACCEPTANCE, GUARANTEE, AND END OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACT (A)	
	4.23 64-65 AN	D 91-92)	
		otance of the works performed (Art. 64-65 and 91-92)	
		of the public contract in case of late performance (Art. 94)	
	4.24 AND 95)	TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT OF THE WORKS (ART. 66 ET a 30	SEQ
	4.25	LITIGATION (ART. 73)	31
5	TERMS (OF REFERENCE	32
	5.1 CONT	EXT	32
		CTIVES	
	_	E OF WORKS	
	-	STONE, QUALITY REQUIREMENTS, DELIVERABLES AND PAYMENT	
	-	E	42

5.5 TI	ECHNICAL OFFER	46	
5.6 G	EOGRAPHICAL LOCATION	46	
5.7 Co	ONTRACT DURATION	47	
5.8 SI	ELECTION CRITERIA	47	
5.9 A	WARD CRITERIA	49	
6 FORM			
6.1 Li	EGAL IDENTIFICATION FORM	50	
6.2 FI	NANCIAL IDENTIFICATION FORM	51	
	UBCONTRACTORS		
6.4 TI	ENDER FORMS – PRICES	53	
	RICE-SCHEDULE (BoQ)		
•	ECHNICAL TIME REDUCTION OFFER		
	EFERENCES		
6.8 DECLARATION ON HONOUR – EXCLUSION GROUNDS			
	TEGRITY STATEMENT FOR THE TENDERERS		
6.10	OTHER DOCUMENTS TO BE PROVIDED		
6.11			

Administrative and contractual provisions

Derogations from the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013

The chapter 'Specific contractual and administrative conditions' of these Tender Specifications (CSC/Cahier Spécial des Charges) holds the specific administrative and contractual provisions that apply to this public contract by way of derogation from the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013 or as a complement or an elaboration thereof.

These Tender Specifications derogate from Article 26 of the GIR.

Contracting authority 1.2

The contracting authority of this public contract is Enabel, the Belgian development agency, public-law company with social purposes, with its registered office at Rue Haute 147, 1000 Brussels in Belgium (enterprise number 0264.814.354, RPM/RPR Brussels). Enabel has the exclusive competence for the execution, in Belgium and abroad, of public service tasks of direct bilateral cooperation with partner countries. Moreover, it may also perform other development cooperation tasks at the request of public interest organisations, and it can develop its own activities to contribute towards realisation of its objectives.

For this procurement contract, Enabel is represented by Koen Goekint (Country Director) and Othman Boufaied (Contract Manager) who are mandated to represent Enabel towards third parties.

Institutional framework of Enabel 1.3

The general framework of reference in which Enabel operates is:

- The Belgian Law on Development Cooperation of 19 March 20131;
- The Belgian Law of 21 December 1998 establishing the Belgian Technical Cooperation as a public-law company2;
- The Belgian Law of 23 November 2017 changing the name of the Belgian Technical Cooperation and defining the missions and functioning of Enabel, the Belgian development agency, published in the Belgian Official Gazette on 11 December 2017.

The following initiatives are also guiding Enabel in its operations and are given as main examples:

- In the field of international cooperation: the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals and the Paris Declaration on the harmonisation and alignment of aid;
- In the field of the fight against corruption: the Law of 8 May 2007 approving the United Nations Convention against Corruption, adopted in New York on 31 October 20033, as well as the Law of 10 February 1999 on the Suppression of Corruption transposing the Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Public Officials in International Business Transactions;
- In the field of Human Rights: the United Nations' Universal Declaration of Human Rights (1948) as well as the 8 basic conventions of the International Labour Organization 4 on Freedom of Association (C. n°87), on the Right to Organise and Collective Bargaining (C. n°98), on Forced Labour (C. n°29 and 105), on Equal Remuneration and on Discrimination in Respect of Employment (C. n°100 and 111), on Minimum Age for Admission to Employment (C. n°138), on the Prohibition of the Worst Forms of Child Labour (C. n°182);
- In the field of environmental protection: The Climate Change Framework Convention of Paris, of 12 December 2015;

Belgian Official Gazette of 30 December 1998, of 17 November 2001, of 6 July 2012, of 15 January 2013 and of 26 March 2013. Belgian Official Gazette of 1 July 1999.

Belgian Official Gazette of 18 November 2008.

⁴ https://www.ilo.org/global/standards/lang--en/index.htm

- The first Management Contract contracting Enabel and the Belgian federal State (approved by the Royal Decree of 17 December 2017, Belgian Official Gazette of 22 December 2017) that sets out the rules and the special conditions for the execution of public service tasks by Enabel on behalf of the Belgian State.
- Enabel's Code of Conduct of January 2019, Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse of June 2019 and Enabel's Policy regarding fraud and corruption risk management of June 2019;

1.4 Rules governing the public contract

The following, among other things, apply to this public contract:

- The Law of 17 June 2016 on public procurement5;
- The Law of 17 June 2013 on justifications, notification and legal remedies for public contracts and certain contracts for works, supplies and services6;
- The Royal Decree of 18 April 2017 on the awarding of public contracts in the classic sectors
- The Royal Decree of 14 January 2013 establishing the General Implementing Rules for public procurement;
- Circulars of the Prime Minister with regards to public procurement.
- Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse June 2019;
- Enabel's Policy regarding fraud and corruption risk management June 2019
- Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data (General Data Protection Regulation, hereinafter referred to as 'the GDPR'), and repealing Directive 95/46/EC;
- Law of 30 July 2018 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data

All Belgian regulations on public contracts can be consulted on www.publicprocurement.be; Enabel's Code of Conduct and the policies mentioned above can be consulted on Enabel's website via https://www.enabel.be/content/integrity-desk.

1.5 Definitions

The following definitions apply to this contract:

- The tenderer: The natural person (m/f) or legal entity that submits a tender;
- The contractor / building contractor: The tenderer to whom the public contract is awarded;
- The contracting authority: Enabel, represented by the Representation of Enabel in Tanzania;
- <u>The tender</u>: The commitment of the tenderer to perform the public contract under the conditions that he has submitted; <u>Days</u>: In the absence of any indication in this regard in the Tender Specifications and the applicable regulations, all days should be interpreted as calendar days;
- <u>Procurement documents</u>: Contract notice and Tender Specifications including the annexes and the documents they refer to;
- <u>Technical specifications</u>: A specification in a document defining the characteristics of a product or a service, such as the quality levels, the environmental and climate performance levels, the design for all needs, including accessibility for people with disabilities, and the evaluation of conformity, of product performance, of the use of the product, safety or dimensions, as well as requirements

⁵ A consolidated version of this document can be consulted on <u>www.publicprocurement.be</u>.

⁶ Belgian Official Gazette of 21 June 2013.

applicable to the product as regards the name by which it is sold, terminology, symbols, testing and test methods, packaging, marking or labelling, instructions for use, the production processes and methods at every stage in the life cycle of the supply or service, as well as the evaluation and conformity procedures;

- <u>Variant</u>: An alternative method for the design or the performance that is introduced either at the demand of the contracting authority, or at the initiative of the tenderer;
- Option: A minor and not strictly necessary element for the performance of the contract, which is introduced either at the demand of the contracting authority, or at the initiative of the tenderer;
- <u>Summary bill of quantities</u>: The procurement document, in a public works contract, which splits up the performance in different items and specifies the quantity or the method to determine the price for each of them;
- <u>General Implementing Rules (GIR)</u>: Rules laid down in the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013 establishing the General Implementing Rules for public procurement and for concessions for public works:
- <u>The Tender Specifications</u> (Cahier spécial des charges/CSC): This document and its annexes and the documents it refers to;
- <u>Corrupt practices</u>: The offer of a bribe, gift, gratuity or commission to a person as an inducement or reward for performing or refraining from an act relating to the award of a contract or performance of a contract already concluded with the contracting authority;
- <u>Litigation</u>: Court action.
- <u>Subcontractor in the meaning of public procurement regulations:</u> The economic operator proposed by a tenderer or contractor to perform part of the contract.
- <u>Controller in the meaning of the GDPR</u>: the natural or legal person, public authority, agency or other body which, alone or jointly with others, determines the purposes and means of the processing of personal data.
- <u>Processor</u> (subcontractor) in the meaning of the GDPR: a natural or legal person, public authority, agency or other body which processes personal data on behalf of the controller
- Recipient in the meaning of the GDPR: a natural or legal person, public authority, agency or another body, to which the personal data are disclosed, whether a third party or not.
- Personal data: any information relating to an identified or identifiable natural person ('data subject'); an identifiable natural person is one who can be identified, directly or indirectly, in particular by reference to an identifier such as a name, an identification number, location data, an online identifier or to one or more factors specific to the physical, physiological, genetic, mental, economic, cultural or social identity of that natural person.

1.6 Confidentiality

1.6.1 Processing of personal data

The contracting authority undertakes to process the personal data that are communicated to it under the framework of this procedure with the greatest care, in accordance with legislation on the protection of personal data (General Data Protection Regulation, GDPR). Where the Belgian law of 30 July 2018 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data contains stricter provisions, the contracting authority will act in accordance with said law.

1.6.2 Confidentiality

The tenderer or contractor and Enabel are bound to secrecy vis-à-vis third parties with regards to any confidential information obtained within the framework of this public contract and will only divulge such information to third parties after receiving the prior written consent of the other party. They will disclose

this confidential information only among appointed parties involved in the assignment. They guarantee that said appointed parties will be adequately informed of their obligations in respect of the confidential nature of the information and that they shall comply therewith.

PRIVACY NOTICE OF ENABEL: Enabel takes your privacy serious. We undertake to protect and process your personal data with due care, transparently and in strict compliance with privacy protection legislation.

See also: https://www.enabel.be/content/privacy-notice-enabel

1.7 Deontological obligations

- 1.7.1. Any failure to comply with one or more of the deontological clauses may lead to the exclusion of the candidate, tenderer or contractor from other public contracts for Enabel.
- 1.7.2. For the duration of the contract, the contractor and his staff respect human rights and undertake not to go against political, cultural or religious customs of the beneficiary country. The tenderer or contractor is bound to respect fundamental labour standards, which are internationally agreed upon by the International Labour Organization (ILO), namely the conventions on union freedom and collective bargaining, on the elimination of forced and obligatory labour, on the elimination of employment and professional discrimination and on the abolition of child labour.
- 1.7.3. In accordance with Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse, the contractor and his staff have the duty to behave in an irreproachable manner towards the beneficiaries of the projects and towards the local population in general. They must abstain from any acts that could be considered a form of sexual exploitation or abuse, and they must abide by the basic principles and guidelines laid down in this policy.
- 1.7.4. Any attempt of a candidate or a tenderer to obtain confidential information, to proceed to illicit arrangements with competitors or to influence the evaluation committee or the contracting authority during the investigation, clarification, evaluation and comparison of tenders and candidates' procedure will lead to the rejection of the application or the tender.
- 1.7.5. Moreover, in order to avoid any impression of risk of partiality or connivance in the follow-up and control of the performance of the public contract, it is strictly forbidden to the contractor to offer, directly or indirectly, gifts, meals or any other material or immaterial advantage, of whatever value, to appointees of the contracting authority who are concerned, directly or indirectly, by the follow-up and/or control of the performance of the contract, regardless of their hierarchical rank.
- 1.7.6. The public contractor commits to supply, upon the demand of the contracting authority, any supporting documents related to the performance conditions of the contract. The contracting authority will be allowed to proceed to any desk review or on-the-spot check which it considers necessary to collect evidence to support the presumption of unusual commercial expenditure. Depending on the gravity of the facts observed, the contractor having paid unusual commercial expenditure is liable to have his contract cancelled or to be permanently excluded.
- 1.7.7. In accordance with Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse of June 2019 and Enabel's Policy regarding fraud and corruption risk management complaints relating to issues of integrity (fraud, corruption, etc.) must be sent to the Integrity desk through the https://www.enabelintegrity.be website.

1.8 Applicable law and competent courts

The contract must be performed and interpreted according to Belgian law.

The parties commit to sincerely perform their engagements to ensure the good performance of the public contract.

In case of litigation or divergence of opinion between the contracting authority and the contractor, the parties will consult each other to find a solution.

If agreement is lacking, the Brussels courts are the only courts competent to resolve the matter.

2 Subject-matter and scope of the public contract

2.1 Type of contract

This contract is a public works contract.

2.2 Subject-matter of the public contract

This public works contract is for improving access to clean, reliable, and sustainable water supply in selected secondary schools, particularly through solar-powered boreholes and connections to public water utilities in conformity with the conditions of these tender specifications.

2.3 Lots

This public works contract has 2 lots, each of which is indivisible. The tenderer may submit a tender for 1 lot or both lots. A tender for part of a lot is inadmissible.

The description of each lot is included in section 5.3 of these Tender Specifications.

The contracting authority limits the number of lots that may be awarded to a single tenderer to 1 lot per tenderer.

2.4 Items

The items of the tender for are detailed in the Bill of Quantities (BOQ). The BOQs are attached to this tender document and are to be filled in by tenderers.

2.5 Duration of the public contract

The contract begins on notification of the award and ends on final acceptance

For each lot, the duration of the works is 180 calendar days from the award date, including the mobilization period of two weeks. In the annex 6.6 fill the possible reduction of the duration you can achieve the work smoothly. Attach a detailed work program indicating the timeline for all activities based on your proposed reduced duration.

2.6 Quantities

Quantities are specified in the Bill of Quantities (BoQ) provided for this public contract.

3 Procedure

3.1 Award procedure

This contract is awarded in accordance with Art. 41, §1, °1 of the Law of 17 June 2016 via a Direct Negotiated Procedure with Prior Publication.

3.2 Publication

3.2.2 Official publication

This contract is officially advertised in the Belgian Public Tender bulletin.

3.2.3 Further publication

These Tender Specifications are posted on the website of Enabel (www.enabel.be).

This contract is officially advertised on the OECD website.

3.3 Information

The awarding of this contract is coordinated by **Mr. Alern Mgeni**. Throughout this procedure all contacts between the contracting authority and the (prospective) tenderers about this contract will exclusively pass through this service / this person. (Prospective) tenderers are prohibited to contact the contracting authority in any other way with regards to this contract, unless otherwise stipulated in these Tender Specifications. Once the contract is awarded, in a kick-off meeting, the single point-of-contact role will be transferred from **Mr. Alern Mgeni** to the contract manager.

Until 7 days before the deadline for submission of tenders, prospective tenderers may ask questions about the Tender Specifications and the contract. Questions will be in writing to alern.mgeni@enabel.be + procurement.tza@enabel.be and they will be answered in the order received. The complete overview of questions asked will be available at the address mentioned above.

Until the notification of the award decision no information will be given about the evolution of the procedure.

The tenderer is to submit his tender after reading and taking into account any corrections made to the tender notice or Tender Specifications that are published on the Enabel website or in the Belgian Public Tender bulletin or that are sent to him by e-mail. To do so, when the tenderer has downloaded the Tender Specifications, it is strongly advised that he gives his coordinates to the public procurement administrator mentioned above and requests information on any modifications or additional information.

In accordance with Article 81 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017, the tenderer is required to report immediately any gap, error or omission in the procurement documents that precludes the establishment of his price or the comparison of tenders, within ten days at the latest before the deadline for receipt of tenders.

3.4 Tender

3.4.1 Data to be included in the tender

The tenderer must use the tender form in annex. In case he does not use this form, he is fully responsible for the perfect concordance between the documents he has used and the form.

The tender and the annexes to the tender form are drawn up in English.

By submitting a tender, the tenderer automatically renounces to his own general or specific sales conditions, even if these are mentioned in any of the annexes to his tender.

The tenderer clearly designates in his tender which information is confidential and/or relates to technical or business secrets and may therefore not be divulged by the contracting authority.

3.4.2 Period the tender is valid

The tenderers remain bound by their tender for a period of 120 calendar days from the tender reception deadline date.

The validity of the tender will be negotiated, if the deadline stated above is overrun.

3.4.3 Determination of prices

All prices given in the tender form must obligatorily be quoted in euro.

A price-schedule contract is a contract in which only the unit prices are lump-sum prices. A price-schedule contract is a contract in which only the unit prices are lump-sum prices. The price to be paid will be obtained by applying the unit prices given in the inventory to the quantities actually performed.

A lump-sum price contract is a contract in which the global price is a flat fee that covers the whole performance of the contract or each of the items of the inventory.

This public contract is a mixed contract, meaning that the prices are price-schedule or lump-sum prices, following indication in the BoQ.

In accordance with Article 37 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017, the contracting authority may for the purpose of verifying the prices carry out an audit of any and all accounting documents and perform onthe-spot checks with a view of verifying the correctness of the indications supplied.

3.4.4 Elements included in the price

The tenderer is to include in his unit and global prices any charges and taxes generally applied to works.

In the unit and global prices for the contract for works any costs, measures and charges applied to the performance of the contract, namely:

- 1° Where applicable, the measures imposed by occupational safety and worker health legislation.
- 2° All the works and supplies, such as bracing, sheet piling and drainage, necessary to prevent landslips and other damage and to remedy these if necessary;
- 3° The perfect preservation, possible shift and redeployment of cables and pipes which might be encountered during excavation, earthworks and dredging, provided that these achievements are not the legal responsibility of the owners of such cables and pipes;
- 4° Removal, within the confines of the excavations, earthworks and dredging which may be necessary for construction of the structure, of:
- a) earth, mud and gravel, stones, rubble, riprap of any kind, masonry remains, turf, plants, bushes, stumps, roots, coppices, debris and waste materials;
- b) any rock regardless of size where the procurement documents state that the earthworks, excavation and dredging are to be carried out in land known to be rocky, and in the absence of this statement, any rock and any blocks of masonry or concrete the individual volume of which does not exceed half a cubic metre;
- 5° The transportation and removal of excavated material, either away from the property of the contracting authority, or to locations within the sites for re-use, or to designated dumping sites, in accordance with the requirements of the procurement documents;
- 6° All overheads, incidental expenses and maintenance costs during contractual performance and the warranty period, insurances needed for the performance;
- 7° Customs and excise duties;
- 8° Acceptance costs.

All the works which, by their nature, depend on or are associated with those described in the procurement documents are also included in the contract price.

3.4.5 How to submit tenders

The tenderer submits his tender as follows:

• One original signed copy of the completed tender must be submitted on paper. In addition, the tenderer shall attach the copies requested in the tender guidelines, which may be submitted in one or more PDF files on a USB stick.

If the tenderer wishes to apply for more than one lot, a separate and complete tender must be submitted for each lot.

Each tender shall be submitted in a separately sealed envelope, clearly marked with the following information:

Tender: TZA22003-10234- Public works contract for Access to water supply for WASH Facilities and Dormitories - Lot: [Insert relevant lot number]

It must be submitted before the 25/08/2025 at 04:00pm EAT

a) By mail (standard or registered mail)

In this case, the sealed envelope is put in a second closed envelope addressed to:

Alern Mgeni Enabel Tanzania 14/15 Masaki, Haile Selassie Road, Oasis Office Park, 4th Floor, P.O Box 23209, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.

b) Delivered by hand with acknowledgment of receipt.

The service can be reached on working days during office hours: from 8 am to 5 pm EAT.

Any tender must arrive before the final submission date and time. Tenders that arrive late will not be accepted. (Article 83 of the Royal Decree on Awarding)

Attention: The bids sent by email will be rejected!

3.4.6 Change or withdrawal of a tender that has already been submitted

When a tenderer wants to change or withdraw a tender already sent or submitted this must be done in accordance with the provisions of Articles 43 and 85 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017.

To change or withdraw a tender already sent or submitted a written statement is required, which will be correctly signed by the tenderer or his representative. The subject-matter and the scope of the changes must be indicated in detail. Any withdrawal must be unconditional.

The withdrawal may also be communicated by fax or electronic means, provided that it is confirmed by registered letter deposited at the post office or against acknowledgement of receipt at the latest the day before the tender acceptance deadline.

When the tender is submitted via e-tendering, the tender is modified or withdrawn in accordance with Article 43, §2 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017.

Thus, modifying or withdrawing a tender after the submission report has been signed requires a new submission report to be signed in accordance with paragraph 1.

The subject-matter and the scope of the changes must be indicated in detail.

The withdrawal must be pure and simple.

Where the submission report issued following modification or withdrawal as referred to is not signed as referred to in paragraph 1, the modification or withdrawal is automatically void. This nullity applies only to the modifications or withdrawal, not to the tender itself.

3.4.7 Opening of Tenders

The tenders will be opened behind closed doors.

3.5 Selection of tenderers

3.5.1 Exclusion grounds

The obligatory and facultative grounds for exclusion are given in attachment to these Tender Specifications.

By submitting this tender, the tenderer certifies that he is not in any of the cases of exclusion listed in the Articles 67 to 69 of the Law of 17 June 2016 and the Articles 61 to 64 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017.

The contracting authority will verify the accuracy of this Declaration on honour for the tenderer with the best tender.

For that purpose, the contracting authority will ask the tenderer concerned to provide information or documents allowing the contracting authority to verify the tenderer's personal situation by the fastest means and within the term set by the contracting authority.

The contracting authority will itself ask for information or documents that it can obtain free of charge by digital means from the instances that manage the information or documents.

In addition to the declaration on honour to be signed, the tenderer is also asked to enclose the following documents with its tender (as recent as possible in relation to the date of submission):

- Extract from the criminal record of the signatories of the bid
- Certificate of regularity of social security contributions
- Tax clearance certificate

3.5.2 Selection criteria

Moreover, by means of the documents requested in the 'Selection file', the tenderer must prove that he is sufficiently capable, from an economic and financial as well as from a technical viewpoint, to successfully perform this public contract.

Moreover, by means of the documents requested in the 'Selection file', the tenderer must prove that he/she is sufficiently capable, from an economic and financial as well as from a technical point of view to successfully perform this public procurement contract. To be selected the tenderer must comply with all the selection criteria requirements as described in the Terms of Reference (section 5).

Only tenders from tenderers who meet all the selection criteria are taken into consideration to participate in the comparison of tenders based on the award criteria, subject to the regularity of these tenders.

3.6 Overview of the procedure

In a first phase, the tenders submitted by the selected tenderers will be evaluated as to formal and material regularity. Irregular tenders will be rejected.

The contracting authority reserves the right to have the irregularities in the tenderers' tender regularised during the negotiations.

In a second phase, the formally and materially regular tenders will be evaluated as to content by an evaluation commission. The contracting authority will restrict the number of tenders to be negotiated by

applying the award criteria stated in the procurement documents. This evaluation will be conducted on the basis of the award criteria given in these Tender Specifications and aims to setting a shortlist of tenderers with whom negotiations will be conducted.

Then, the negotiation phase follows. With a view of improving the contents of the tenders, the contracting authority may negotiate with tenderers the initial tenders and all subsequent tenders that they have submitted, except final tenders. The minimum requirements and the award criteria are not negotiable. However, the contracting authority may also decide not to negotiate. In this case, the initial tender is the final tender.

When the contracting authority intends to conclude the negotiations, it will so advise the remaining tenderers and will set a common deadline for the submission of any BAFOs. Once negotiations have closed, the BAFO will be compared with the exclusion, selection and award criteria. The tenderer whose BAFO shows the best value for money (obtaining the best score based on the award criteria given below) will be designated the contractor for this contract.

3.7 Award criteria

The tenderer will join to his bid a financial offer (form 6.3). The contracting authority will choose the most advantageous bid based on the award criteria listed in the Terms of reference (section 5).

3.7.1 Final score

The lot will be awarded to the tenderer with the highest final score, after the contracting authority has verified the accuracy of the Declaration on honour of this tenderer and provided the check shows that the Declaration on honour corresponds with reality.

3.8 Awarding the public contract

The contract will be awarded to the tenderer who has the best scores based on the criteria mentioned in section 3.7 and who has submitted a regular tender.

Notice though that, in accordance with Art. 85 of the Law of 17 June 2016, there is no obligation for the contracting authority to award the contract. The contracting authority can also decide to award only one, two or all three lots.

The contracting authority may either decide not to award the contract, either redo the procedure, if necessary, through another award procedure.

3.9 Concluding the public contract

In accordance with Art. 88 of the Royal Decree of 18 April 2017, the contract occurs through the notification to the selected tenderer of the approval of his tender.

Notification is via digital platforms, e-mail or fax and, on the same day, by registered post.

So, the full contract consists of a contract awarded by Enabel to the chosen tenderer in accordance with:

- These Tender Specifications and its annexes.
- The approved BAFO of the contractor and all of its annexes.
- The registered letter of notification of the award decision.
- If applicable, the service agreement
- Any later documents that are accepted and signed by both parties, as appropriate.

In view of transparency, Enabel undertakes to annually publish the list of contractors of its public contracts. By submitting tender, the contractor of the public contract declares agreeing with the publication of the contract title, the nature and subject-matter of the contract, his name and location as well as the value of the contract.

4 Specific contractual and administrative conditions

This chapter of these Tender Specifications holds the specific provisions that apply to this public contract by way of derogation from the 'General Implementing Rules for public procurement and for concessions for public works of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013, hereinafter referred to as 'GIR' or as a complement or an elaboration thereof. The numbering of the articles below (between brackets) follows the numbering of the GIR articles. Unless indicated, the relevant provisions of the General Implementing Rules (GIR) apply in full.

These Tender Specifications derogate from Article 26 of the General Implementing Rules – GIR (Royal Decree of 14 January 2013).

4.1 Definitions (Art. 2)

The following definitions apply to this contract:

- <u>Progress payment</u>: Payment of an instalment under the contract after acceptance of performance;
- Advance: Payment of part of the contract before acceptance of performance;
- <u>Amendment</u>: Agreement established between the contracting parties during contract performance in view of changing documents applicable to the contract;
- <u>Performance bond</u>: Financial collateral given by the contractor to ensure he will fulfil his obligations until final and good performance of the contract
- <u>Managing official</u>: The official or any other person who manages and controls the performance of the public contract;
- <u>Acceptance</u>: Observation by the contracting authority that the performance by the contractor of all or part of the works, supplies or services is in compliance with good practice and with the terms and conditions of the contract;

4.2 Usage of digital means (Art. 10)

The usage of digital means for the purpose of exchanging during the performance of the contract is allowed unless where indicated otherwise in these Tender Specifications.

In the latter cases, notifications of the contracting authority are sent to the domicile or the registered office mentioned in the tender.

4.3 Managing official (Art. 11)

The management and control of contract performance will be ensured by the person who will be designated managing official of the tender in the letter notifying the award of the contract to the successful bidder. For this tender, the manager official will be **Mr. Oscar Mlay.**

Once the contract is concluded the managing official is the main contact point for the building contractor. Any correspondence or any questions with regards to the performance of the contract will be addressed to him or her, unless explicitly mentioned otherwise in these Tender Specifications (see namely, 'Payments' below).

The managing official is fully competent for the follow-up of the satisfactory performance of the contract, including issuing service orders, drawing up reports and states of affairs, approving the services, progress reports and reviews. He or she may order any modifications to the contract with regards to its subject-matter provided that they remain within its scope.

However, the signing of amendments or any other decision or agreement implying derogation from the essential terms and conditions of the contract are not part of the competence of the managing official. For such decisions the contracting authority is represented as stipulated under Contracting authority.

Under no circumstances is the managing official allowed to modify modalities (e.g. performance period) of the contract, even if the financial impact is nil or negative. Any commitment, change or agreement derogating the conditions in the Tender Specifications and that has not been notified by the contracting authority, will be considered null and void.

4.4 Subcontractors (Art. 12 to 15)

The fact that the contractor entrusts all or part of his commitments to subcontractors does not relieve him of liability to the contracting authority. The latter does not recognise any contractual relation with third parties.

The contractor remains, in any case, solely liable to the contracting authority.

The building contractor undertakes to having the contract performed by the persons indicated in the tender, except for force majeure. The persons mentioned or their replacements are all deemed to effectively be involved in the performance of the contract. Any replacements must be approved by the contracting authority.

When the contractor uses a subcontractor to carry out specific processing activities on behalf of the contracting authority, the same data protection obligations as those of the contractor are imposed on that subcontractor by contract or any other legal act.

In the same way, the contractor will respect and enforce to his subcontractors, the provisions of Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data (General Data Protection Regulation, GDPR). The contracting authority may conduct an audit of the processing carried out in order to validate compliance with this legislation.

4.5 Confidentiality (Art. 18)

Knowledge and information obtained by the contractor, including any persons responsible for the mission and any other person involved in this public contact, are strictly confidential.

Under no circumstances can the information collected, regardless of its origin and nature, be transferred to third parties in any form.

All parties directly or indirectly involved are therefore bound by the duty of discretion.

In accordance with Article 18 of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013 establishing the general rules for public procurement, the tenderer or contractor undertakes to consider and process in a strictly confidential manner any information, all facts, any documents and/or any data, whatever their nature and support, which have been communicated to him, in any form and by any means, or to which he has access, directly or indirectly, in the context or on the occasion of this public contract. Confidential information covers, in particular, the very existence of this public contract, without this list being limited.

Therefore, he undertakes to:

- Respect and enforce the strict confidentiality of these elements and to take all necessary precautions in order to preserve their secrecy (these precautions cannot in any case be inferior to those taken by the tenderer for the protection of his own confidential information);
- Consult, use and/or exploit, directly or indirectly, all of the above elements only to the extent strictly necessary to prepare and, where applicable, to carry out this public contract (particularly regarding the privacy legislation with respect to personal data processing);
- Not reproduce, distribute, disclose, transmit or otherwise make available to third parties the above elements, in whole or in part, and in any form, unless having obtained prior and written consent of the contracting authority;
- Return, at the first request of the contracting authority, the above elements;
- In general, not disclose directly or indirectly to third parties, whether for advertising or any other reason,

the content of this public contract, or the fact that the tenderer or contractor performs this public contract for the contracting authority, or, where applicable, the results obtained in this context, unless having obtained prior and written consent of the contracting authority.

4.6 Personal data protection

4.6.1 Processing of personal data by the contracting authority

The contracting authority undertakes to process the personal data that are communicated to it in response to the Call for Tenders with the greatest care, in accordance with legislation on the protection of personal data (General Data Protection Regulation, GDPR). Where the Belgian law of 30 July 2018 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data contains stricter provisions, the contracting authority will act in accordance with said law.

4.6.2 Processing of personal data by the contractor

Where during contract performance, the contractor processes personal data of the contracting authority exclusively in the name and on behalf of the contracting authority, for the sole purpose of performing the services in accordance with the provisions of the Tender Specifications or in execution of a legal obligation.

For any processing of personal data carried out in connection with this public contract, the contractor is required to comply with Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data (GDPR) and the Belgian law of 30 July 2018 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data.

By simply participating in the contracting process, the tenderer certifies that he will strictly comply with the obligations of the GDPR for any processing of personal data conducted in connection with that public contract.

The personal data that will be processed are confidential. The contractor will therefore limit access to data to the strictly necessary personnel for the performance, management and monitoring of the public contract.

For the performance of the public contract, the contracting authority will determine the purposes and means of processing personal data. In this case, the contracting authority will be responsible for the processing and the contractor will be its processor, within the meaning of Article 28 of the GDPR.

Processing carried out on behalf of a controller must be governed by a contract or other legal act that is binding on the processor with regard to the personal data controller and that sets out that the subcontractor acts only on the instruction of the person in charge of the processing and that the confidentiality and security obligations regarding the processing of personal data are also the responsibility of the subcontractor (Article 28 §3 of the GDPR).

4.7 Intellectual property (Art. 19 to 23)

The contracting authority does not acquire the intellectual property rights created, developed or used during performance of the public contract.

Without prejudice to clause 1 and unless otherwise stipulated in the procurement documents, when the subject-matter of the public contract consists of the creation, manufacture or the development of designs or of logos, the contracting authority acquires the intellectual property thereof, as well as the right to trademark them, to have them registered and to have them protected.

For domain names created under the contract, the contracting authority also acquires the right to register and protect them, unless otherwise stipulated in the procurement documents.

Where the contracting authority does not acquire the intellectual property rights, it obtains a patent licence of the results protected by intellectual property law for the exploitation modes that are mentioned in the procurement documents.

The contracting authority lists the exploitation modes for which it intends to obtain a licence in the procurement documents.

4.8 Insurance (Art. **24**)

The contractor takes out insurance policies covering his liability for occupational accidents and his third-party liability for the performance of the contract.

The contractor also takes out any other insurance policy imposed by the procurement documents.

Within fourteen days from contract conclusion the contractor provides evidence that he has taken out these insurance policies through a certificate stating the extent of the liability covered required by the procurement documents.

At any time during contract performance, the contractor provides such certificate within fifteen days following the reception of such a request from the contracting authority.

4.9 Performance bond (Art. 25 to 33)

The performance bond is set at 5% of the total value, excluding VAT, of procurement. The value thus obtained is rounded up to the nearest 10 euros.

In accordance with the legal and regulatory provisions, the performance bond may be constituted either of cash or of public funds or may take the form of a joint performance bond.

The performance bond may also take the form of a surety bond issued by a credit institution meeting the requirements of the law on the statute and control of credit institutions, or by an insurance company meeting the requirements of the law on control of insurance companies and approved for branch 15 (bonds).

By way of derogation from Article 26 the performance bond may be posted through an establishment that has its registered office in one of the countries of destination of the services. The contracting authority reserves the right to accept or refuse the posting of the bond through that institution. The tenderer mentions the name and address of this institution in the tender.

This derogation is founded on the idea of providing possible local tenderers with an opportunity to submit a tender. This measure is made essential by the specific requirements of the contract.

The performance bond must clearly stipulate that it remains valid until the final acceptance of the works. The contracting authority reserves the right to reject any performance bond that fails to include this clause or provides ambiguous terms regarding its duration.

The contractor must, within 30 calendar days from the day of contract conclusion, furnish proof that he or a third party has posted the bond in one of the ways set out below:

- 1° in the case of cash, by transfer of the amount to the bpost bank account number of the Deposit and Consignment Office Complete the following form as well as possible: https://finances.belgium.be/sites/default/files/O1_marche_public.pdf (PDF, 1.34 Mo), and forward it by e-mail to info.cdcdck@minfin.fed.be
- 2° in the case of public funds, by depositing such funds, for the account of the Deposit and Consignment Office, with the State Cashier at the head office of the National Bank in Brussels or at one of its provincial agencies or with a public institution with an equivalent function
- 3° in the case of a joint surety, by deposit via an institution that lawfully carries out this activity of a deed of joint surety with the Deposit and Consignment Office or with a public institution with an equivalent function
- 4° in the case of a guaranty, by the deed of undertaking of the credit institution or the insurance company. Such proof is provided, as appropriate, by submission to the contracting authority of:
- 1° the deposit receipt of the Deposit and Consignment Office or of a public institution with an equivalent function; or

- 2° a debit notice issued by the credit institution or the insurance company; or
- 3° the deposit certificate issued by the State Cashier or public institution with an equivalent function; or
- 4° the original copy of the deed of joint surety stamped by the Depot and Consignment Office or by a public institution with an equivalent function; or
- 5° the original copy of the deed of undertaking issued by the credit institution or the insurance company granting a guaranty.

These documents, signed by the depositor, must state why the performance bond was posted and its precise usage, consisting of a concise indication of the subject-matter of the contract and a reference to the procurement documents, as well as the name, first name and full address of the contractor and, where relevant, that of the third party that made the deposit on the contractor's account, bearing the statement "lender" or "mandatary" as appropriate.

The period of 30 calendar days specified above is suspended during the period of closure of the contractor's business for paid annual holidays and the days off in lieu stipulated by

regulation or by a collective binding labour agreement.

Proof that the required performance bond has been posted must be sent to the address that will be mentioned in the contract conclusion notification.

Request by the contractor for the acceptance procedure to be carried out:

- 1° For provisional acceptance: This is equal to a request to release the first half of the performance bond
- 2° For final acceptance: This is equal to a request to release the second half of the performance bond, or, in case no provisional acceptance applied, to release the whole of the performance bond.

4.10 Conformity of performance (Art. 34)

The works must comply in all respects with the procurement documents. Even in the absence of technical specifications in the procurement documents, the works, supplies and services must comply in all aspects with good practice.

4.10.1 Plans, documents and objects prepared by the contracting authority (Art. 35)

At the request of the contractor, the contractor receives free of charge and where possible in digital form:

A complete set of copies of the plans on which contract awarding was based. The contracting authority is liable for the conformity of these copies with the original plans.

The contractor preserves all the documents and correspondence relating to the award and performance of the contract and keeps these available to the contracting authority until final acceptance.

4.10.2 Detailed plans and work plans prepared by the contractor (Art. 36)

The contractor prepares at its own expense all the detailed plans and work plans he requires for successful performance of the contract.

The procurement documents specify which plans require approval by the contracting authority, which has 30 days to approve or reject the plans starting from the date on which they are submitted to it.

Any corrected documents are resubmitted for approval to the contracting authority, which has 15 days to approve them, provided that the corrections requested are not the result of new demands made by the contracting authority.

4.10.2.1 Construction planning

How the planning is submitted is to be discussed with the Managing official.

The first planning is to be introduced within 15 calendar days following tender award notification and it is to be updated every month during construction.

This draft construction planning provides, in addition to deadlines for the 'on-site' works as such, the timing for the different preliminary achievements such as the establishment of documents prescribed by the technical provisions, implementation plans and detailed plans, calculation notes, selection of equipment and materials, including the approval of related documents, the supplies, workshop or factory work, preliminary tests and conformity tests, etc.

After it has been studied and remarks have been made and following approval of the contracting authority, the planning becomes contractually binding.

4.10.2.2 Master plan

The contracting authority reserves the right to request a master plan from the building contractor at any point during contract execution.

If requested, the contractor shall deliver a master plan for approval by the contracting authority and its advisors within 15 calendar days following the date of the request.

This plan must sufficiently anticipate situations to allow the contracting authority to take decisions or provide answers or supply the documents that are incumbent upon it.

The master plan will be updated at least every month and must be consistent with the construction planning. It will be aligned with the construction planning and will be based on the same document.

The contractor will be sole manager of the planning of all activities required to perform this contract.

In particular he plans:

- Set dates for delivering implementation plans that he needs,
- The placing of orders to his suppliers and subcontractors,
- The presentation in due time of samples and technical forms of products submitted for preliminary technical acceptance,
- Measuring the works and the workshop manufacture period,
- Indication of deadlines dates for decisions to be taken by the contracting authority,
- Indication of deadline dates for the conclusion of modifications to orders being elaborated,
- Indication of deadline dates for the achievement of works performed by other enterprises,
- Registration, in due time, of the measurements of the works,
- etc.

4.10.2.3 Performance documents

These plans consider the Tender Specifications and technical provisions of the project annexed to the tendered Specifications.

All implementation plans and detail plans are to be submitted for approval to the contracting authority along with calculation notes, technical approvals and technical forms, and in particular those related to the works and the equipment listed below (non-exhaustive list):

 Public works contract for Access to water supply for WASH Facilities and Dormitories through Drilling of 8 Boreholes and Installation of Solar Pumps in selected schools and Teachers resources centre (TRC) in Kigoma region

The managing official may refuse technical forms that are partial, incomplete, or too commercial and do not provide the technical information required for assessment and approval.

Samples of materials to be used shall be submitted for approval to the managing official and the approved model will remain on the construction site until the last piece of its kind is placed.

At the request of the contracting authority, the building contractor shall also provide the following documents during the performance period:

- Samples of materials proposed corresponding to the technical forms;
- Test reports, technical manuals, technical approvals, technical forms, etc.;
- Products or equipment used for this contract.

4.10.2.4 Establishment of "As Built" plans

During performance, the building contractor shall revise and update the plans to the last detail in order to accurately reproduce the works and installations and their specifics as built.

When the works are completed and in view of provisional acceptance of the works, the building contractor is to submit the complete plans and diagrams of the works and installations as built.

When the works are completed and in view of provisional acceptance, the building contractor is to submit the technical files, at least including:

- As built drawings
- technical specifications with brands names, types, origin of the equipment installed,
- users manuals, explaining the functioning of all equipment,
- maintenance manuals, explaining everything that needs to be done for the maintenance and care of the equipment (regular control and maintenance, list and codes of spare parts...),
- and test reports, tuning and adjustment reports.

4.11 Changes to the public contract (Art. 37 to 38/19 and 80)

Replacement of the contractor (Art. 38/3)

Provided that he meets the selection and exclusion criteria set out in this document, a new contractor may replace the contractor with whom the initial contract was agreed in cases other than those provided for in Art. 38/3 of the General Implementing Rules (GIR).

The contractor submits his request as quickly as possible by registered post, stating the reasons for this replacement and providing a detailed inventory of the state of the supplies already delivered, the new contractor's contact details and the documents and certificates which the contracting authority cannot access free of charge.

The replacement will be recorded in an amendment dated and signed by all three parties. The initial contractor remains liable to the contracting authority for the performance of the remainder of the contract.

Revision of prices (Art. 38/7)

For this contract, price revisions are not permitted.

Indemnities following the suspensions ordered by the contracting authority during performance (Art. 38/12)

The contracting authority reserves the right to suspend the performance of the contract for a given period, mainly when it considers that the contract cannot be performed without inconvenience at that time.

The performance period is extended by the period of delay caused by this suspension, provided that the contractual performance period has not expired. If it has expired, the return of fines for late performance will be agreed.

When activities are suspended, based on this clause, the contractor is required to take all necessary precautions, at his expense, to protect the services already performed and the materials from potential damage caused by unfavourable weather conditions, theft or other malicious acts.

The contractor has a right to damages for suspensions ordered by the contracting authority when:

The suspension lasts in total longer than one twentieth of the performance period and at least ten working days or two calendar weeks, depending on whether the performance period is expressed in working days or calendar days;

The suspension is not owing to unfavourable weather conditions;

The suspension occurred during the contract performance period.

Within thirty days of their occurrence or the date on which the contractor or the contracting authority would normally have become aware of them, the contractor reports the facts or circumstances succinctly to the contracting authority and describes precisely their impact on the progress and cost of the contract.

As a reminder, in accordance with Article 80 of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013, the building contractor is required to continue the works without interruption, notwithstanding any disputes which might result from the determination of the new prices.

Any order amending the contract during performance of the contract is issued in writing. However, minor amendments need only be entered in the works logbook.

The orders or entries shall specify the changes to be made to the initial terms of the contract and to the plans.

Setting unit or global prices - Calculation of the price

The unit or global prices of changed works, which the building contractor is bound to carry out, are determined in the following order of priority:

- 1. In accordance with the unit or global prices of the approved tender;
- 2. By default, in accordance with the unit or global prices inferred from the approved tender;
- 3. By default, in accordance with the unit or global prices from another contract of Enabel;
- 4. By default, in accordance with the unit or global prices to be agreed upon on the occasion.

In the latter case, the building contractor shall justify the new unit price by detailing the supplies, personhours, equipment hours and general costs as well as profits.

Setting unit or global prices - Procedure to follow

The building contractor submits his proposal for the execution of the complementary achievements or his new prices within 10 calendar days from the request of the managing official (unless the latter has specified a shorter deadline) and before executing the works considered. This proposal is submitted on the basis of a standard form that will be provided by the managing official and will come with all necessary annexes and justifications.

This form for agreed prices is established on the basis of a format from Enabel. The building contractor will attach at least the following annexes and documents to it:

- The amending order from the contracting authority and more in general the justification of the modification of the works;
- The calculation of new unit or global prices;
- The quantities to be implemented for the existing items and for any new items;
- If appropriate, the tenders of subcontractors or suppliers consulted;
- Any other documents he or she deems pertinent.

After executing the works and at the latest upon establishment of the final settlement of account, the building contractor shall transfer the invoices that have been sent to him by subcontractors and suppliers to the managing official. He shall certify on these invoices not having received any credit note or compensation from the supplier or subcontractor for the invoice.

When the building contractor defaults on providing an acceptable new price proposal or when the contracting authority deems the proposal made unacceptable, the contracting authority will set the new unit or global price as of right, all rights of the building contractor being preserved.

Unforeseeable circumstances

As a rule, the contractor is not entitled to any modification of the contractual terms due to circumstances of which the contracting authority was unaware.

A decision of the Belgian State to suspend cooperation with a partner country is deemed to be unforeseeable circumstances within the meaning of this article. Should the Belgian State break off or cease activities which implies therefore the financing of this public contract, Enabel will do everything reasonable to agree on a maximum compensation figure.

4.12 Control and supervision of the public contract

Scope of the control and supervision (Art. 39)

The contracting authority may have the preparation and the performance of the delivery supervised or controlled at any location by all appropriate means.

The contractor is required to provide the representatives of the contracting authority with all the information and facilities needed for carrying out their task.

The fact that such supervision or control has been carried out by the contracting authority does not release the contractor of its liability should delivery eventually be rejected due to defects of any kind.

Technical acceptance procedures (Art. 41)

Concerning technical acceptance, it is necessary to distinguish between:

- 1° Preliminary technical acceptance within the meaning of Article 42;
- 2° Ex post technical acceptance within the meaning of Article 43.

The contracting authority may waive all or part of the technical acceptance procedures where the contractor can prove that the products have been controlled by an independent body during their production, following the specifications of the procurement documents. In this respect, any other certification procedure in force in a Member State of the European Union is regarded as comparable to the Belgian conformity certification procedure and deemed equivalent.

Preliminary technical acceptance (Art. 42)

As a general rule, products may not be used if they have not been accepted by the managing official or his or her representative.

All equipment proposed must be approved by the contracting authority. This approval is obtained on the basis of the preliminary technical forms that have been elaborated by the building contractor and are submitted to the managing official.

The technical forms give a general overview of the equipment and give specifications and choices made for the project.

The contracting authority refuses technical forms which are partial or incomplete and which do not provide the technical information required for examination and approval.

Once the comments made are in the possession of the building contractor, he will take them into account and will complete the technical form in order to have it approved.

Technical acceptance may be carried out at various stages of production.

Products that at a given stage do not satisfy the technical acceptance tests imposed will be declared unfit for technical acceptance.

The contractor is responsible for storing and conserving his products in view of any risks run by his company and this until provisional acceptance of the works.

Except for approved products, the costs pertaining to the preliminary technical acceptance are borne by the building contractor.

In any case, the costs include:

- Costs pertaining to tasks of the acceptance experts, including travel and accommodation costs of acceptance experts.
- Costs pertaining to collecting, packaging, and transporting samples, regardless of where or whereto,
- Costs pertaining to tests (preparation, manufacture of testing tools, the tests as such (in this respect, the circular letters pertaining to setting rates for tests apply),
- Costs pertaining to the replacement of products that are faulty or damaged.

Ex post technical acceptance (Art. 43)

Ex post technical acceptance will obligatorily be carried out for any defects to works or equipment components that would have remained hidden after completion of the works.

4.13 Performance period (Art. 76)

The building contractor is to complete the works within a period of **180 calendar days** as of the contract award date.

4.14 Provision of land (Art. 77)

The building contractor shall bear all costs pertaining to land that is needed for the installation of his construction sites, storing supplies, preparing and handling materials as well as land needed for storing soil, excavated soil that is known to be unsuitable for reuse as landfill, material from demolition, general waste of any kind and excess earth.

He is liable, vis-à-vis adjoining landowners, for any damage to private property while achieving the works or storing the materials.

The enclosing hoardings may not be used for advertising.

No advertising is allowed on the sites used, except for 'Construction site information'.

4.15 Labour conditions (Art. 78)

All the legal, regulatory and contractual provisions relating to the general conditions of work and health and safety in the workplace will apply to all personnel on the contractor's site.

The building contractor, all persons acting as a subcontractor at any stage and all persons providing personnel, shall be required to pay their respective personnel salaries, bonuses and allowances at the rates established by law, by collective agreements concluded by company agreements.

The building contractor shall keep available to the contracting authority at all times, at a location designated by the latter, a list, updated on a daily basis, of all the personnel it employs on the site.

This list contains at least the following personal information:

the name; the first name; actual occupation per day on the construction site; the date of birth; the job title; qualifications;

The contact person appointed by the building contractor for the performance of this contract with the contracting authority will have to master the English language.

4.16 Organisation of the construction site (Art. 79)

The building contractor shall comply with the local legal and regulatory provisions governing building works, road works, health and safety in the workplace as well as the provisions of collective, national, regional, local and company agreements.

During the performance of the works, the building contractor shall be required to maintain the security of the site for the duration of the works and, in the interests of his appointees and the representatives of the contracting authority and third parties, to take all necessary measures to ensure their safety.

The building contractor shall, under his sole responsibility and at his own expense, take all necessary measures to ensure the protection, preservation and integrity of existing buildings and works. He shall also take all the precautions required by best building practices and any special circumstances to protect neighbouring properties and to prevent any disturbance to them through his fault.

The building contractor shall bear all costs of and implement all necessary measures to signal in daylight, at night as well as in fog, the construction sites and storage sites that are located where vehicles and pedestrians circulate. He is to completely enclose his sites along temporary or permanent sidewalks as well as along temporary or permanent traffic arteries. Such enclosing and hoarding will also ensure the protection of the construction site during the construction period against any outside intrusion.

The building contractor shall supply a purpose-made notification billboard for this construction site with dimensions and following the model offered by the contracting authority prior to starting the works.

This informative panel will be put in place when construction work starts along the public road in a place that is to be defined by the contracting authority.

4.17 Means of control (Art. 82)

The building contractor shall notify the contracting authority of the precise location of works in progress on its site, in its workshops and factories, and on the premises of its subcontractors and suppliers.

Without prejudice to the technical acceptance operations to be carried out on-site, the building contractor shall at all times grant to the managing official and other agents appointed by the contracting authority free access to the sites of production, to monitor strict application of the contract, in particular concerning the origin and quality of the products.

If the building contractor uses products that have not been accepted or that do not meet the demands of the Tender Specifications, the managing official or his/her representative may forbid the further pursuit of the works concerned, until these refused products are replaced by others that meet the contract's conditions, without this decision generating an extension of the performance period or any entitlement to compensation. The building contractor is notified about the decision through a written report.

4.18 Works logbook (Art. 83)

Upon contract conclusion notification, the building contractor makes the necessary Works logbooks available to Enabel.

Once the works have started, the building contractor shall supply <u>2 copies</u> with all necessary information for establishing the Works logbooks daily to the contracting authority's representatives. This concerns:

- Weather conditions;
- Interruptions to works caused by adverse weather conditions;
- Accidents at work;
- The number and capacity of workers employed on the site;
- Materials supplied;
- Equipment actually used and equipment out of service;

- Unforeseen events;
- Amending orders of minor impact;
- The attachments and quantities performed for each item and in each zone of the construction site. The attachments constitute the true and detailed representation of all works performed, in quantity, dimensions, and weights.

Delay in providing the above documents may result in the application of penalties.

When the building contractor does not formulate any remarks in due form and within above-mentioned deadlines, he is deemed to agree with the annotations made in the logbooks or detailed attachments.

When these observations are not deemed justified, the building contractor will be notified accordingly by registered letter.

4.19 Liability of the building contractor (Art. 84)

The building contractor shall be held liable in respect of all works performed by him or his subcontractors until final acceptance of all works.

During the warranty period, the building contractor shall carry out the work, as required, all the works and repairs necessary to restore it to a good state of operation and maintain it in this state.

Any repairs to shortcomings are performed in compliance with the instructions of the contracting authority.

4.20 Zero tolerance Sexual exploitation and abuse

In application of Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse of June 2019 there will be zero tolerance towards any misconduct that could impact the professional credibility of the tenderer.

4.21 Means of action of the contracting authority (Art. 44-51 and 85-88)

The building contractor's default is not solely related to the works as such but also to the whole of the building contractor's obligations.

In order to avoid any impression of risk of partiality or connivance in the follow-up and control of the performance of the public contract, it is strictly forbidden to the building contractor to offer, directly or indirectly, gifts, meals, or any other material or immaterial advantage, of whatever value, to appointees of the contracting authority who are concerned, directly or indirectly, by the follow-up and/or control of the performance of the contract, regardless of their hierarchical rank.

In case of violation, the contracting authority may impose a lump-sum fine to for each violation, which can be up to three times the amount obtained by adding up the (estimated) values of the advantage offered to the appointee and of the advantage that the contractor hoped to obtain by offering the advantage to the appointee. The contracting authority will decide independently about the application and the amount of this fine.

Moreover, in case of suspicion of fraud or bad workmanship during performance, the building contractor may be required to demolish the whole or part of the works executed and to rebuild them. The costs of demolition and reconstruction will be borne by the building contractor or the contracting authority, according to whether the suspicion is found to be justified or not.

This clause is without prejudice to the possible application of other measures as of right provided in the GIR, namely the unilateral termination of the contract and/or the exclusion from procurement by the contracting authority for a determined duration.

4.21.1 Failure of performance (Art. 44)

The contractor is considered to be in failure of performance under the public contract:

1° when performance is not carried out in accordance with the conditions specified in the procurement documents;

2° at any time, when performance has not progressed in such a way that it can be fully completed on the due dates;

3° when he does not observe written orders, which have been given in due form by the contracting authority.

Any failure to comply with the provisions of the public contract, including the non-observance of orders of the contracting authority, is recorded in a report ('process verbal'), a copy of which will be sent immediately to the contractor by registered mail or equivalent.

The contractor must repair the defects without any delay. He may assert his right of defence by registered letter or equivalent addressed to the contracting authority within fifteen days from the date of dispatch of the report (process verbal). Silence on his part after this period shall be deemed an acknowledgement of the reported facts.

Any defects detected that can be attributed to the contractor render him liable to one or more of the measures provided for in Articles 45 to 49, 86, and 87.

4.21.2 Penalties (Art. 45)

Special penalties

Because of the significance of the works, are burdened, without the need for notice and by the breach only, with a daily penalty of EUR 150 for every calendar day of non-performance:

- Non-delivery of administrative and technical documents because not having delivered the documents listed by the time set during construction site meetings or by administrative order.
- Absence from construction site meetings or coordination meetings: For every absence a penalty
 will be imposed on the building contractor who has not attended or has not been validly
 represented at meetings which he was supposed to attend.
- Delay in executing observations or administrative orders of the contracting authority via the
 managing official: Where the lists of observations resulting from construction site visits, for
 painting orders, or upon acceptance, have not been fulfilled by the time set by the managing
 official, the contractor will be penalized per calendar day of delay until performance is effectively
 carried out.
- Change of one of the key staff members without prior agreement of the contracting authority: A lump sum penalty is applied per day of default, ending when, either the managing official obtains the approval of the contracting authority for the new member's being put in place, or the replaced member is re-established in its duties, or both parties agree about a new person as a replacement that is jointly accepted. When the penalties are applied, these may in no case be recuperated retrospectively, even where agreement is found.

If a shortcoming to one of the stipulations mentioned above is found in accordance with Article 44 §2 of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013, the contracting authority may allow a period to the building contractor to repair the shortcoming and to inform it about this reparation by registered mail. In this case, the contractor is notified of the deadline along with the failure of the performance report mentioned in Art. 44 §2 of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013.

If no term is indicated in the registered letter the contractor is to repair the shortcomings without any further delay.

4.21.3 Fines for delay (Art. 46 et seq. and 86)

The fines for delay differ from the penalties referred to in Article 45. They are due, without the need for notice, by the mere lapse of the performance period without the issuing of a report and they are automatically applied for the total number of days of delay.

Fines are calculated following the formula given in Article 86 §1.

Regardless of the application of any fines for delay, the contractor indemnifies the contracting authority against damages for which it is liable towards third parties due to late performance of the contract.

In case the works being the subject-matter of these Tender Specifications were not completed within the period set in point 1.4.18, the following fine will be applied as of right for every working day of delay without the need for notice, simply by the expiry of the period in question:

$R = 0.45*((M*n^2)/N^2)$

where,

R = the sum of the fines to be applied for a delay of n working days;

M = the initial value of procurement;

N = the number of working days initially specified for performance of the contract;

n =the number of working days of delay.

However, if the factor M does not exceed EUR 75 000 and, at the same time, N does not exceed 150 working days, the denominator N2 will be replaced by $150 \times N$.

If the contract includes several parts or several stages, each of which has its own period N and value M, each of them will be deemed a distinct contract for the application of fines.

If, without setting parts or stages, the Tender Specifications stipulate that partial periods apply, failure to observe these will be penalised by special fines provided for in the Tender Specifications, or, in the absence of such a provision, by fines calculated in accordance with the formula referred to in Art. 86§1 of the Royal Decree of 14 January 2013, in which the factors M and N refer to the total contract. However, the maximum sum of fines associated with each partial period of P working days shall be:

Rpar = (M/20)*(P/N)

The maximum amount of penalties for this tender shall not exceed 7.5% of the initial contract value. (*Note: Proposed reduction of project duration is considered as an award criterion.*)

4.22 Measures as of right (Art. 47 and 87)

When, upon expiry of the term given in Article 44, §2, the contractor has not taken action or has presented means deemed unjustified by the contracting authority, the contracting authority may apply the measures as of right described in paragraph 2.

However, the contracting authority may apply measures as of right without waiting for the expiry of the term given in Article 44, §2, when the contractor has explicitly recognised the defects detected.

The measures as of right are:

- 1° Unilateral termination of the contract. In this case the entire performance bond, or if no bond has been posted an equivalent amount, is acquired as of right by the contracting authority as lump sum damages. This measure excludes the application of any fine for delay in performance in respect of the terminated part;
- 2° Performance under regie of all or part of the non-performed contract;
- 3° Conclusion of one or more replacement contracts with one or more third parties for all or part of the contract remaining to be performed.

The measures referred to in 1°, 2°, and 3° will be taken at the expense and risk of the defaulting contractor. However, any fines or penalties imposed during the performance of a replacement contract will be borne by the new contractor.

Other sanctions (Art. 48)

Without prejudice to the sanctions provided in these Tender Specifications, the contractor defaulting on performance may be excluded by the contracting authority from its public contracts for three years. The contractor in question will be allowed to present a defence and the reasoned decision will be notified to him.

4.23 Acceptance, guarantee, and end of the public contract (Art. 64-65 and 91-92)

4.23.1 Acceptance of the works performed (Art. 64-65 and 91-92)

The managing official will closely follow up on the work during the performance. The services will not be accepted until after fulfilling audit checks, technical acceptance and prescribed tests.

Provisional acceptance is provided upon the completion of the performance of the works forming the subject matter of the contract and, on expiry of a warranty period, a final acceptance marking full completion of the contract.

The total or partial taking of possession of the work by the contracting authority does not constitute provisional acceptance.

The contracting authority disposes of a verification term of thirty days starting on the final or partial end date of the works, set in conformity with the modalities in the procurement documents, to carry out the acceptance formalities and to notify the result to the service provider.

When the work is completed on the date set for its completion, and provided that the results of the technical acceptance inspections and prescribed tests are known, a report confirming provisional acceptance or refusing acceptance will be drawn up.

When the work is terminated before or after this date, the building contractor notifies the managing official thereof, by registered letter or e-mail showing the exact date of dispatch, and requests, on that occasion, to proceed to provisional acceptance. Within 15 days after the date of receipt of the building contractor's request, and provided that the results of the technical acceptance inspections and prescribed tests are known, a report confirming provisional acceptance or refusing acceptance will be drawn up.

The warranty period commences on the date on which provisional acceptance is given and last for one year.

Within 15 days preceding the date of expiry of the warranty period, a report confirming final acceptance or refusing acceptance shall be drawn up.

The building contractor shall be held liable in respect of all works performed by him or his subcontractors until final acceptance of all works.

During the warranty period, the building contractor shall carry out on the work, as required, all the works and repairs necessary to restore it to a good state of operation and maintain it in this state.

However, after provisional acceptance, the building contractor will not be liable for damage the causes of which are not attributable to him.

The contractor who, during the warranty period, does certain works or partial works, shall restore the adjacent parts (such as paint, wallpaper, parquet floor...) if these have been damaged because of the repairs undertaken.

In buildings or other property that are being occupied the contractor may not hinder or endanger said occupation in any way for the performance of his works. The contractor shall bear all costs for the measures needed for that purpose.

During the warranty period, the building contractor shall carry out the work, as required, all the works and repairs necessary to restore it to a good state of operation and maintain it in this state.

From the time of provisional acceptance and without prejudice to the provisions of paragraph 1 relating to its obligations during the warranty period, the building contractor shall be responsible for the solidity of the work and the proper execution of the works in accordance with Articles 1792 and 2270 of the Civil Code.

Any breach of the contractor's obligations during the warranty period will be reported ('procès-verbal') and lead to measures as of right, in accordance with Article 44 of the GIR.

4.23.2 Price of the public contract in case of late performance (Art. 94)

The price of the works performed during a period of delay attributable to the building contractor will be calculated in accordance with whichever of the following procedures proves the more advantageous to the contracting authority:

- by assigning to the constituent elements of the prices contractually specified for revision the values applicable during the period of delay in question; or
- by assigning to each of these elements an average value (E) established as follows:

where,

e1, e2, ... en, represent the successive values of the element in question during the contractual period, which may be extended insofar as the delay is not attributable to the building contractor;

t1, t2, ... tn, represent the corresponding periods for applying these values, expressed in months of 30 days, each fraction of a month being ignored and the periods of suspension of performance of the contract not being taken into consideration.

The value of E is calculated to the second decimal place.

4.24 Terms and conditions of payment of the works (Art. 66 et seq and 95)

Payment will be made within 30 days after submission and approval of the invoice.

The invoice can be submitted via email and physical delivery showing the full details of the works that justify the payment. The invoice will be signed and dated and will include the statement: 'Certified true and sincere for the amount of EUR (amount in words).'The reference is **TZA22003-10234** and the name of the managing official **Mr. Oscar Mlay**. The invoice that does not include this reference cannot be paid.

The invoice address is:

Enabel Tanzania 14/15 Masaki, Haile Selassie Road, Oasis Office Park, 4th Floor, P.O Box 23209, Dar es Salaam, Tanzania.

The contractor will prepare reports that will include for each item the following:

- Total quantities to be achieved in accordance with departure measurements,
- The quantities already achieved and registered in the progress report of the preceding month,
- The quantities achieved during the month,
- Total quantities achieved by the end of the month,

- The unit prices of the order,
- The total prices of the quantities achieved during the month for each of the items,
- The total price of the invoice of the month.

An advance of 20% maximum of the total amount can be requested by the contractor after awarding.

This advance will be deducted from the intermediate payments.

Payment will be by bank transfer only.

4.25 Litigation (Art. 73)

The competent courts of Brussels have exclusive jurisdiction over any dispute arising from the performance of this public contract. French or Dutch are the languages of proceedings.

The contracting authority will in no case be held liable for any damage caused to persons or property as a direct or indirect consequence of the activities required for the performance of this contract. The contractor indemnifies the contracting authority against any claims for compensation by third parties in this respect.

In case of 'litigation', i.e. court action, correspondence must (also) be sent to the following address:

Enabel

Legal unit of the Logistics and Acquisitions service (L&A)

To the attention of Ms Inge Janssens

rue Haute 147

1000 Brussels

Belgium

5 Terms of Reference

5.1 Context

In July 2023, Tanzania and Belgium launched a five-year initiative, Wezesha Binti, to empower young people, particularly women, providing improved learning environments in Kigoma region. These ToR relate exclusively to Result Area 1(Education) as detailed below:

Education: Enhancing access to quality secondary education by providing safe and conducive learning environments, with a focus on empowering teachers and constructing climate-resilient infrastructure for girls and vulnerable boys. To support this, Enabel through the Infra Hub is building dormitories and water-based WASH facilities, and to ensure a reliable water supply, boreholes will be drilled for schools that lack access to RUWASA/KUWASA water connections.

The Wezesha Binti program aims to equip all 26 selected schools (including one TRC) across the Kigoma Region with fully functional School Water, Sanitation, and Hygiene (SWASH) facilities. To achieve this, a dual water supply approach has been proposed for each school:

- A. Schools with access to RUWASA/KUWASA water supply:
 - For schools already connected or located near an existing supply network, the system will be extended to serve the new facilities.
 - In schools with high water pressure, the supply will be directed to an elevated storage tank (tank raiser), with an overflow connected to a ground-level storage tank that is also fed by a rainwater harvesting system.
 - In schools with low water pressure, water will first be stored in a 5m³ tank installed on ground-level and then pumped using a solar-powered booster pump into a 10m³ elevated storage tank.
- B. Schools without access to RUWASA/KUWASA water supply:
 - Boreholes will be drilled and equipped with solar-powered pumps to provide a sustainable and cost-effective water source eliminating reliance on grid electricity.

5.2 Objectives

The main objective of these Terms of Reference (ToRs) is to hire one or two contractor(s) for improving access to clean, reliable, and sustainable water supply in selected secondary schools, particularly through solar-powered boreholes and connections to public water utilities.

5.3 Scope of works

The scope of works is divided into 2 lots based on geographical location as follows:

- Lot 1: Drilling boreholes at 5 selected secondary schools and one TRC centre, and RUWASA water connection at one selected school in Kibondo district council.
- Lot 2: Drilling boreholes at 3 selected secondary school and RUWASA/KUWASA water connection at 17 selected schools in the following areas: Kigoma Municipal council, Kigoma District Council, Kasulu Town Council, and Kasulu District Council

The description of works per lot is as follows:

• **Table 1 for Lot 1:** Drilling of water borehole at the following secondary school Kumgogo, Kigina, Kumsenga, Mount samba and drilling a bore hole at Kizazi TRC and connecting RUWASA water to WASH at Migezi secondary school in Kibondo district

Item	Names Of schools	Description				
LOT 1 KIBONDO DC						
A: Borehole works						
1	• Kumgogo,	Geophysical Survey and Report				
1.1.0	• Kigina,	Geological Survey: Perform ground water survey and determine most potential and appropriate location for high yield borehole and submit interpreted report to client before start drilling				
2	 Kumsenga, 	Drilling and Well Development				
2.1.1	Mount samba, And. Kizazi Teachers Resource Centre	Mobilization of manpower, drilling rig(s), equipment, tools and accessories to the site, supply and installation of signboard and project registration				
2.1.2		Secure all required permits from the Ministry of Water or any other government institution and register a borehole				
2.1.3		The project involves drilling a deep borehole with a 6" diameter surface casing, covering all geological formations. The scope includes site preparation, casing recovery, sub-strata sampling and testing, water provision for drilling, environmental protection, and quality assurance measures such as vertical alignment checks. The borehole will be fitted with of 6" PVC plain casing (PN10) and 60m of 6" PVC screen casing from Plasco Industries or similar, ensuring alignment with the aquifer. Temporary casing installation and removal are included.				
		Note: Enabel will only accept boreholes with a minimum yield of 4.5m ³ /hour.				
2.1.4		Supply and construct a borehole protection chamber with internal dimensions of 1m x 1m and a height of 1m and 0.9m deep. The chamber walls shall be 200mm thick, cast in C25 concrete, reinforced with Y16 bars at 150mm centres in both directions on both faces. Install a heavy-duty reinforced concrete cover fitted with a high-strength, lockable access door. The access door shall be fabricated from 6mm thick steel plate, framed with 4mm thick 2" x 2" angle line, and designed to allow safe access for maintenance activities. A secure, heavy-duty locking mechanism shall be provided to prevent unauthorized access and theft.				
2.1.5		Borehole development and pump test				
2.1.6		Borehole development (4 hours flushing) or until water clears				
2.1.7		Conduct a Constant Pumping test (12hours)				
2.1.8		Conduct a Recovery test (2 hours) or until 95% return to SWL Water Quality Testing and Disinfection				
2.1.9		Demobilization of manpower, drilling rig(s), equipment, tools and accessories from the site.				
2.1.11		Submission of final water quality report, borehole capacity report, and geophysical survey report.				
2.1.12		Supply and installation of a submersible solar pump, supply and install solar power system and testing the system and solar pump				

- Kumgogo,
- Kigina,
- Kumsenga,
- Mount Samba,

and

• Kizazi Teachers Resource Centre Supply and install an SQF 2-230 GRUNDFOS brand water pump or similar (if approved by the managing official) capable of operating on both grid electricity and solar power. The pump shall have a maximum operating pressure of more than 15 bar and a discharge capacity of at least 4.5 cubic meters per hour at a head of 230m

Supply solar System, construct mounting structure, Welded Razor Wire Mesh security fence product is almost impossible to climb or cut off with the standard tools and solar installation

- -Install solar power system which have a 5.5kW capacity sufficient to operate the pump for at least 8 hours per day without battery.
- 14 pcs of solar panels with 450 Watts each
- -MPPT Controller: Must be compatible with the system.

- Mounting structures: For solar panels and other necessary fittings, a sharp security fence to protect solar panel support posts in open fields should be 2.4 meters high and constructed from durable materials such as hot-dip galvanized steel or red oxide-coated. It should include anti-climb features like barbed wire, 3mm thick razor wire, or 3mm thick metal spikes, with posts anchored securely in concrete to prevent tampering.

, includes concrete grade 20 to support fence base post 0.3x0.3mx0.6m deep, a 0.15x0.15m plain class 20 ground beam to hold 3mm thick chainlink sharp wire , The size of fence post is 75mm external diameter - 3mm thick -galvanized steel should be spaced at 2.5m c/c between poles cover all panels to be inside fence, bolts and nuts, welding works, metal gates use 3mm thick thickness of metal sections, ant corrosion prevention red oxide and gravel levelling . fence material must be approved by client.

• Picture for quick reference

2.1.13



Sample of 3mm razor fence wire



Sample of 75mm thick treated fence steel post fixed with razor wire and barbud wire on top





Solar panel mounting structure / and Ant climbing





Hand washing points at school compounds

		TAT . 1' . '1 . '
		Water distribution system from the borehole to the storage tank and
3		onward to the distribution points (DPs).
3.1.1		Excavate both hard ground, and backfilling works, trench size 1m deep,
0.1.0		o.5m wide Allowance for rock excavation and sand backfilling works, trench size 1m
3.1.2		
		deep, 0.5m wide Water connections from borehole to Storage PVC tank.
		Supply and install unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride (uPVC) with pipe
3.1.3		pressure of >= PN12.5. The outer diameter 2" or 50mm. supply all
		necessary fittings and service.
		Water treatment and Distribution
		Water treatment and Distribution
	Kumgogo,	Borehole Disinfection with granular chlorine after development allow for
4.1.0	Kumgogo,	24 hours in case needed based on the water test results,
	• Kigina,	
4.1.1	Rigina,	Excavate both hard ground, and backfilling works, trench size 1m deep,
	• kumsenga,	0.5m wide
4.1.2	- Kumbenga,	Allowance for rock excavation and sand backfilling works, trench size 1m
	Mount Samba,	deep, 0.5m wide
	Trount barrou,	Water distributions from Storage PVC tank at girls WASH to DPs at boys
	and	WASH facilities, dormitories, kitchen, dining area, administration block,
		teachers WASH, and at assembly point.
4.1.3	Kizazi Teachers	Supply and install Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride (uPVC) with pipe
	Resource	pressure of >= PN10. The outer diameter 1.25" or 32mm.
	Centre	Supply all necessary Fittings: Use high-pressure uPVC fittings (elbows,
		tees, reducers, valves) rated at the same pressure class as the pipes.
		Hand washing stations for students at the school compounds.
		Supply 5000litres Sim tank and construct a 1.7m high stone masonry tank
		raiser having crossing walls of 2m x 2m by 0.6m thick. Use 1:3 cement
		mortar, cast reinforced concrete grade 20 of 100mm thick slab use Y12
		steel bars spacing 150c/c. Curing works, install tank, construct a
		handwashing station at the assembly point with 8 bib taps (4 each side) or
4.1.4		at the kitchen. Support the taps with plastered burnt brick masonry walls
		using a 1:3 mortar mix, finished with waterproof plaster and cement
		slurry for durability and moisture protection then apply blue painting
		finish. Station will be equipped with four taps on both sides, 3gate valves, class B PVC drainage pipes to remove water 80m away to existing soakage
		pit. including all necessary fitting materials. Built two hand hole
		inspection chambers provided with screening devices.
		maposition chambers provided with screening devices.
B: Co	onnection of Secondary	Schools to the RUWASA Water Supply, Linking the Proposed
	Mainline to	Storage Tanks at the School WASH Facilities.
5		Normal and firm excavation;
	• Migezi	Excavation a 1m deep trench for laying pipes including cutting trees and
	secondary	all kind of site clearance
5.1.1	school	Allowance for rock excavation
5.1.2		Supply, pipe connection from the KUWASA main pipeline and backfilling
		works;
		Use a 1" poly pipe (Class D PN10 or HDPE PN12.5/PN16), including all
		accessories for jointing for easy maintenance and fittings to ensure
		durability and optimal performance.

		Installation of booster solar water pump
5.1.3		Supply booster Solar pump, solar panels and supporting structure. Supply and fix three solar panel each panel with 500Watt capacity. Including its 1. Elevated structure/post for securing solar panels. Built it on tank tower or on WASH roof as per engineer instruction. 3. Solar water pump 1kW with Advanced (built-in MPPT, hybrid), water output 10m3/day, brand supply Grundfos or Dayliff, or equivalent.
Installa	tion of Solar booster pu	ımp and Submission of As-Built Report at Kumsenga Sec School
6.1.1	Kumesenga Sec School	Supply booster Solar pump, solar panels and supporting structure. Supply and fix three solar panel each panel with 500Watt capacity. Including its 1. Elevated structure/post for securing solar panels. Built it on tank tower or on WASH roof as per engineer instruction. 3. Solar water pump 1kW with Advanced (built-in MPPT, hybrid), water output 10m3/day, brand supply Grundfos or Dayliff, or equivalent.
6.1.2		Preparation and submission of as-built drawings, final reports, and final operation and maintenance manual for both solar system and water supply system.

Any reference to specific brands or manufacturers in these Terms of Reference is made solely to indicate the required quality and performance standards. Bidders are free to propose alternative brands, provided that the proposed products are of equal or superior quality, fully comply with the technical specifications outlined in the tender documents and are subject to the approval of the managing official.

Table 2 for Lot 2: Drilling boreholes at 3 selected secondary school and RUWASA/KUWASA water connection at 17 selected secondary schools in the following areas: Kigoma Municipal council, Kigoma District Council, Kasulu Town Council, and Kasulu District Council

Item	Names Of secondary schools	Description
	LOT 2 – Kig	oma DC & MC and Kasulu TC & DC
A. Boreho	le Drilling Works:	
• Kig	oma District Council: Mkabogo	Secondary School
• Kas	sulu District Council: Ntamya Se	condary School
• Kas	sulu Town Council: Ruhitha Seco	ondary School
1		Geophysical Survey and Report
1.1.0	Kasulu TC- Ruhitha and Ntamya sec school	Geological Survey: Perform ground water survey and determine most potential and appropriate location for high yield borehole and submit interpreted report to client before start drilling
2	School	Drilling and Well Development
2.1.1	Kigoma DC: - Mkabogo sec school	Mobilization of manpower, drilling rig(s), equipment, tools and accessories to the site. supply and installation of signboard and project registration
2.1.2		Secure all required permits from the Ministry of Water or any other government institution and register a borehole

2.1.3	The project involves drilling a deep borehole with a 6" diameter surface casing, covering all geological formations. The scope includes site preparation, casing recovery, sub-strata sampling and testing, water provision for drilling, environmental protection, and quality assurance measures such as vertical alignment checks. The borehole will be fitted with of 6" PVC plain casing (PN10) and 60m of 6" PVC screen casing from Plasco Industries or similar, ensuring alignment with the aquifer. Temporary casing installation and removal are included. Note: Enabel will only accept boreholes with a minimum yield of 4,500 litres per hour.
2.1.4	Supply and construct a borehole projection chamber with internal dimensions of 1m x 1m and a height of 1m and 0.9m deep. The chamber walls shall be 200mm thick, cast in C25 concrete, reinforced with Y16 bars at 150mm centres in both directions on both faces. Install a heavy-duty reinforced concrete cover fitted with a high-strength, lockable access door. The access door shall be fabricated from 6mm thick steel plate, framed with 4mm thick 2" x 2" angle line, and designed to allow safe access for maintenance activities. A secure, heavy-duty locking mechanism shall be provided to prevent unauthorized access and theft.
2.1.5	Borehole development and pump test
2.1.6	Borehole development (4hours flushing) or until water clears
2.1.7	Conduct a Constant Pumping test (12hours)
2.1.8	Conduct a Recovery test (2 hours) or until 95% return to SWL
2.1.9	Water Quality Testing and Disinfection
2.1.10	Demobilization of manpower, drilling rig(s), equipment, tools and accessories from the site.
2.1.11	Submission of final water quality report, borehole capacity report, and geophysical survey report.
2.1.12	Supply and installation of a submersible solar pump, supply and install solar power system and testing the system and solar pump

•	Kasulu TC- Ruhitha
	and Ntamya sec
	school

• Kigoma DC:-Mkabogo sec school Supply and install an SQF 2-230 GRUNDFOS brand water pump or similar (if approved by the managing official) capable of operating on both grid electricity and solar power. The pump shall have a maximum operating pressure of more than 15 bar and a discharge capacity of at least 4.5 cubic meters per hour at a head of 230m

Supply solar System, construct mounting structure, Welded Razor Wire Mesh security fence product is almost impossible to climb or cut off with the standard tools and solar installation

- -Install solar power system which have a 5.5kW capacity sufficient to operate the pump for at least 8 hours per day without battery.
- 14 pcs of solar panels with 450 Watts each
- -MPPT Controller: Must be compatible with the system.

-Mounting structures: For solar panels and other necessary fittings, A sharp security fence to protect solar panel support posts in open fields should be 2.4 meters high and constructed from durable materials such as hot-dip galvanized steel or red oxide-coated. It should include anti-climb features like barbed wire, 3mm thick razor wire, or 3mm thick metal spikes, with posts anchored securely in concrete to prevent tampering.

, includes concrete grade 20 to support fence base post 0.3x0.3mx0.6m deep, a 0.15x0.15m plain class 20 ground beam to hold 3mm thick chain-link sharp wire , The size of fence post is 75mm external diameter - 3mm thick -galvanized steel should be spaced at 2.5m c/c between poles cover all panels to be inside fence, bolts and nuts, welding works, metal gates use 3mm thick thickness of metal sections, ant corrosion prevention red oxide and gravel levelling . fence material must be approved by client.

Picture for quick reference

2.1.13



Sample of 3mm razor fence wire



Sample of 75mm thick treated fence steel post fixed with razor wire and barbud wire on top





Solar panel mounting structure / and Ant climbing





Hand washing points at school compounds

		TAT-Land Historian market from the Land Harden Land and the state of t
3		Water distribution system from the borehole to the storage tank and onward to the distribution points (DPs).
3.1.1		Excavate both hard ground, and backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide
3.1.2		Allowance for rock excavation and sand backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide
3.1.3		Water connections from borehole to Storage PVC tank. Supply and install Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride (uPVC) with pipe pressure of >= PN12.5. The outer diameter 2" or 50mm. supply all necessary fittings and service.
	Wate	r Treatment and Distribution
4.1.0	Kasulu TC- Ruhitha and Ntamya sec	Borehole Disinfection with granular chlorine after development allow for 24 hours in case needed based on the water test results,
4.1.1	school	Excavate both hard ground, and backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide
4.1.2	 Kigoma DC:- Mkabogo sec school 	Allowance for rock excavation and sand backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide
4.1.3		Water distributions from Storage PVC tank at girls WASH to DPs at boys WASH facilities, dormitories, kitchen, dining area, administration block, teachers WASH, and at assembly point. Supply and install Unplasticized Polyvinyl Chloride (uPVC) with pipe pressure of >= PN10. The outer diameter 1.25" or 32mm. supply all necessary Fittings: Use high-pressure uPVC fittings (elbows, tees, reducers, valves) rated at the same pressure class as the pipes.
4.1.4		Hand washing stations for students at the school compounds. Supply 5000litres Sim tank and construct a 1.7m high stone masonry tank raiser having crossing walls of 2mx2m by 0.6m thick. Use 1:3 cement mortar, cast reinforced concrete grade 20 of 100mm thick slab use Y12 steel bars spacing 150c/c. Curing works, install tank, construct a handwashing station at the assembly point with 8 bib taps (4 each side) or at the kitchen. Support the taps with plastered burnt brick masonry walls using a 1:3 mortar mix, finished with waterproof plaster and cement slurry for durability and moisture protection then apply blue painting finish. Station will be equipped with four taps on both sides, 3gate valves, class B PVC drainage pipes to remove water 80m away to existing soakage pit. including all necessary fitting materials. Built two hand hole inspection chambers provided with screening devices.
		to the RUWASA Water Supply, Linking the Proposed
Mainline t	to Storage Tanks at the Scho	ool WASH Facilities.
5.1.1	• Kigoma MC- Wakulima 300m,	Normal and firm excavation; Excavation a 1m deep trench for laying pipes including cutting trees and all kind of site clearance Allowance for rock excavation
5.1.2	Rubuga 300m, Kitongani 100m,	Supply, pipe connection from the KUWASA main pipeline and backfilling works; Use a 1" poly pipe (Class D PN10 or HDPE PN12.5/PN16), including

5.1.3	Kitwe 120m, and Bustabani 120m, Kigoma DC- Kidahwe 150m, Mgawa 120m, Mkongoro 300m, and Bugamba 200m Kasulu TC- Kinkati 200m, Nyansha 200, Mwanga 600m, Kigodya 900m Kasulu DC - Kimenyi 300M, Kabagwe 200m, Kurunyemi 200m, Asante Nyerere 500m, The estimated cumulative total pipe-laying distance for all 17 secondary schools is 2,910 meters.	all accessories for jointing for easy maintenance and fittings to ensure durability and optimal performance. Installation of booster solar water pump Supply booster Solar pump, solar panels and supporting structure. Supply and fix three solar panel each panel with 500Watt capacity. Including its 1. Elevated structure/post for securing solar panels. Built it on tank tower or on WASH roof as per engineer instruction. 3. Solar water pump 1kW with Advanced (built-in MPPT, hybrid), water output 10m3/day, brand supply Grundfos or Dayliff, or equivalent.
Installatio	on of Solar booster pump an	d Submission of As-Built Report
6.1.1	Wakulima, Kidahwe,	Supply booster Solar pump, solar panels and supporting structure.
	Kigodya, Kimenyi, Mkongoro,	Supply and fix three solar panel each panel with 500Watt capacity.
	Mgawa, Asante Nyerere, and	Including its
	Kurunyemi	1. Elevated structure/post for securing solar panels. Built it on tank
		tower or on WASH roof as per engineer instruction.

3. Solar water pump 1kW with Advanced (built-in MPPT, hybrid), water output 10m3/day, brand supply Grundfos or Dayliff, or

Preparation and submission of as-built drawings, final reports, and

final operation and maintenance manual for both solar system and

Any reference to specific brands or manufacturers in these Terms of Reference is made solely to indicate the required quality and performance standards. Bidders are free to propose alternative brands, provided that the proposed products are of equal or superior quality, fully comply with the technical specifications outlined in the tender documents and are subject to the approval of the managing official.

water supply system.

equivalent.

5.4 Milestone, Quality Requirements, Deliverables and Payment Schedule

Table 3 below includes the minimum quality requirements, deliverables and Payment Schedule for all 2 Lots. Please refer to section 5.3 and to the attached BoQ for a detailed description of the works.

6.1.2

Table 3: Milestone, Quality Requirements, Deliverables and Payment Schedule for both lot 1 and lot 2

S/No	Milestone Name	Description	Deliverable	Payment Schedule
1	Advance payment	Initial cost upon contract award for mobilization and startup costs. To be paid upon submission of work programme and mobilization plan.	N/A	20%
2	Preliminary survey Preliminary survey Preliminary survey Preliminary survey Preliminary survey President a proval before drilling. While checking for a good location and yield capacity, the contractor is expected to keep in mind the fact that it is the rainy season now and use its knowledge of hydrology to take into account the possible reduction of yield in the dry season. Conduct a hydrogeological survey to identify the optimal location for the borehole. Detailed Hydrogeological survey report of the borehole.			
3	Drilling and construction	Drill a borehole with a 6-inch diameter to the required depth to achieve the required yield. Properly case and seal the borehole to prevent contamination and ensure structural integrity Excavate trenches and connect water from borehole to storage tanks use a 1" poly pipe (Class D PN10 or HDPE PN12.5/PN16), including all necessary high-quality joints and fittings to ensure durability and optimal performance.	Borehole	1 st Installment
4	Pump testing	Conduct pump testing to confirm the borehole's yield capacity of at least 4 m³/hour. Submit detailed test results for review and verification by the client	Detailed pump test report	
5	Water Quality Test	Conduct water quality analysis to ensure compliance with national standards for potable water.	Detailed water quality analysis report.	2 nd Installment
6	Installation of a hybrid grid and solar water pump,	Supply and install an SQF 2-230 GRUNDFOS brand water pump or similar brand capable of operating on both grid electricity and solar power. The pump	Water pump, solar panels, mounting	

installation of solar panels and installation of fence including its metal gate shall have a maximum operating pressure of more than 15 bar and a discharge capacity of at least 4.5 cubic meters per hour at a head of 230m structures, and fence as per description

Supply solar System, construct mounting structure, Welded Razor Wire Mesh security fence product is almost impossible to climb or cut off with the standard tools and solar installation

- -Install solar power system which have a 5.5kW capacity sufficient to operate the pump for at least 8 hours per day without battery.
- 14 pcs of solar panels with 450 Watts each
- -MPPT Controller: Must be compatible with the system.

-Mounting structures: For solar panels and other necessary fittings, A sharp security fence to protect solar panel support posts in open fields should be 2.4 meters high and constructed from durable materials such as hot-dip galvanized steel or red oxide-coated. It should include anti-climb features like barbed wire, 3mm thick razor wire, or 3mm thick metal spikes, with posts anchored securely in concrete to prevent tampering.

Includes concrete grade 20 to support fence base post 0.3x0.3mx0.6m deep, a 0.15x0.15m plain class 20 ground beam to hold 3mm thick chain-link sharp wire, The size of fence post is 75mm external diameter - 3mm thick -galvanized steel should be spaced at 2.5m c/c between poles cover all panels to be inside fence, bolts and nuts, welding works, metal gates use 3mm thick thickness of metal sections, ant corrosion prevention red oxide and gravel levelling.

• Including supply and installations of all pipes and fittings

7	RUWASA Water flows in WASH	Connection of Secondary Schools to the RUWASA Water Supply, Linking the Proposed Mainline to Storage Tanks at Both the School WASH and Dormitory WASH Facilities.	Connect RUWASA water to school WASH	
8	Water Treatment	 Water Treatment Borehole Disinfection with granular chlorine after development allow for 24 hours in case needed based on the water test results, Excavate both hard ground, and backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide Allowance for rock excavation and sand backfilling works, trench size 1m deep, 0.5m wide Water distributions from Storage PVC tank at girls WASH to DPs at boys WASH facilities, dormitories, kitchen, dining area, administration block, teachers WASH, and assembly point. Construction hand washing stations for students at the school compounds. Supplying and installing a booster solar water pump in case of low water pressure from rainwater harvesting tank. Preparation and submission of asbuilt drawings, final reports, and final operation and maintenance manual for both solar system and water supply system. 	Water disinfection, Water distributions from storage tank to school compounds. And installation of booster water pump and submission of final compressive report	3 rd Installment
9	Demobilization	Demobilize equipment and restore the site upon project completion.	Clean site	
10	Completion report	Provide a comprehensive report detailing all activities, materials used, and the results of yield and water quality tests.	Comprehensi ve report as per description	4 th Installment
11	Final acceptance and handover	Complete all snags and submission of asbuilt report (DLP: 6 months)	Retention	5%

A maximum of 20% advance payment can be requested; it will be recovered proportionally from each invoice issued under the contract (including the first invoice). In the event that only one invoice is submitted, the full amount will be deducted from that invoice.

Contractor must ensure the borehole achieves a minimum yield of **4.5** m³/hour. Boreholes that do not meet this yield will not be accepted, and no payment will be made until the required yield is achieved.

Invoicing shall be done at most once per month, based on the consolidated works performed and accepted during the respective period.

A 5% retention shall be applied to each invoice issued under the contract. This retention will be released after the expiry of the Defects Liability Period (DLP) / warranty period, provided that all identified snags have been duly addressed to the satisfaction of the Contracting Authority.

The Defects Liability Period (DLP) is set at six (12) months from the date of provisional acceptance of the works.

5.5 Technical Offer

The contractual completion period is fixed at 180 calendar days for each Lot. However, tenderers are invited to propose a technically and economically viable reduced completion period, where feasible, without compromising the quality and scope of the works. Such proposals will be considered as added value but shall not influence the technical scoring.

Tenderers shall attach a detailed and logical work program (Gantt chart or equivalent), clearly indicating the sequence and duration of all activities in line with the proposed reduced timeframe. The Gantt chart must present a breakdown of activities in sufficient detail, avoiding broad or generalized headings, to allow for proper assessment of the construction sequence and resource allocation.

5.6 Geographical Location

Table 4: Geographical Location

Lot 1	District	School Name	longitude	latitude	Ward
1		Migezi sec Busunzu ward	30.59253889	-3.954175	Busunzu
2		Kumgongo sec Mabamba ward	30.512177	-3.610618	Mabamba
3		Kumsenga	30.432023	-3.743446	Kumsenga
4	Kibondo DC	Kigina sec Rugogwe ward	30.49363	-3.886865	Rugongwe
5		Mount Samba sec Kizazi ward	30.481357	-3.684503	Kizazi
6		Kizazi TRC	30.481567	-3.66563	Kizazi
Lot 2	District	School Name	Longitude	Latitude	Ward
1		Ntamya sec Buhoro ward	30.189423	-4.36235	Buhoro
2	Kasulu DC	Kimenyi sec Kagera Nkanda ward	30.588446	-4.5708064	Kagera Nkanda
3		Asante Nyerere	30.329344	-4.8653292	Asante Nyerere
4		Kurunyemi sec Kurugongo ward	30.320911	-4.642948	Kurugongo

5		Kabagwe sec Kwaga ward	29.93595	-4.845655	Kwaga
6		Ruhita sec Ruhita ward	30.20627	-4.5572783	Ruhita
7		Kigodya sec Kigondo ward	30.178628	-4.5809672	Kigondo
8	Kasulu TC	Kinkati sec Kumsenga ward	30.080043	-4.5682517	Kumsenga
9		Nyansha	30.134451	-4.5919833	Nyansha
10		Mwanga -Kasulu sec Muganza ward	30.102155	-4.4310552	Muganza
11		Kidahwe Sec Kidahwe ward	29.832300	-4.8890973	Kidahwe
12		Mkabogo sec Kalinzi Ward	29.76994	-4.6694812	Kalinzi
13	Kigoma DC	Mgawa sec Mahembe ward	29.745440	-4.800348	Mahembe
14		Mkongoro sec Mkongoro ward	29.707450	-4.6983583	Mkongoro
15		Bugamba sec Bugamba ward	29.648362	-4.5972009	Mwamgongo
16		Wakulima sec Kagera ward	29.700477	-4.9314631	Kagera
17		Kitongoni sec Kitongoni ward	29.672808	-4.9186	Kitongoni
18	Kigoma MC	Rubuga	29.687719	-4.904115	Rubuga
19		Kitwe sec Bagwe ward	29.611328	-4.9035437	Bangwe
20		Bushabani sec Kibirizi ward	29.633905	-4.8473533	Kibirizi

5.7 Contract Duration

The duration of the contract including the mobilization period, is as follows:

- Lot 1: 180 calendar days from the contract award date.
- Lot 2: 180 calendar days from the contract award date.

Important: Contractors awarded a contract are expected to complete the works within the specified timeframe. Delays due to cash flow constraints will not be accepted.

5.8 Selection Criteria

The tenderer must provide:

i. Financial Capacity:

Bidders must provide audited financial statements demonstrating the following minimum average annual turnover over the last 3 years (2022-2024):

• Lot 1: Minimum € 140,000

• Lot 2: Minimum € 120,000

ii. CRB Certification requirement (Contractor Registration Board)

All bidders must hold a valid CRB certificate as specified below:

- Lot 1: Class 1 Specialist Contractor in Water drilling Works or higher, OR Class 5 Civil Contractor or higher.
- Lot 2: Class 2 Specialist Contractor in Water drilling Works or higher, OR Class 5 Civil Contractor or higher.

iii. References/Similar works

Bidders must demonstrate experience in at least three (3) similar water supply projects, (borehole drilling or water distribution/connection) completed between 2020 and 2025. The tenderer must include in their offer a list of two (2) references for similar works related to borehole drilling, including water treatment. The tenderer must also demonstrate their capability to conduct groundwater surveys and install solar panels and solar water pumps. At least one of the references should reflect experience in water distribution and connection works

For each submitted project, the bidder must provide at least one completion certificate or client reference letter showing the contract value, project location and project details (see table in the annex 6.7)

Each of the referenced projects must have a minimum contract value as follows:

- Lot 1: Minimum € 60,000 per project (EXCL. VAT). Hence, the cumulative minimum cumulative amount for all three referenced project is € 180,000
- Lot 2: Minimum € 50,000 per project (EXCL. VAT). Hence, the cumulative minimum cumulative amount for all three referenced project is € 150,000

Key Personnel Requirements.

Lot 1:

- Site Engineer: One (1) CV of a registered Civil Engineer with a minimum of 8 years of relevant experience. Each CV must be supported by a copy of the university degree and a valid professional registration certificate.
- Site Technicians: Three (3) CVs of water technicians with at least 5 years of experience in water works. Each CV must be accompanied by a copy of a vocational training or college certificate.

Lot 2:

- Site Engineers: Two (2) CVs of registered Civil Engineers with a minimum of 8 years of relevant experience. Each CV must be supported by a copy of the university degree and a valid professional registration certificate.
- Site Technicians: Four (4) CVs of water technicians with at least 5 years of experience in water works. Each CV must be accompanied by a copy of a vocational training or college certificate.

All proposed staff members must be project-dedicated and available throughout the execution period. Any unapproved substitution or prolonged absence from the site of key personnel will be considered a breach of contract, unless formally authorized by the Contracting Authority in advance.

5.9 Award Criteria

The contracting authority will select the regular BAFO (best-and-final offer) which it considers the most advantageous, considering the following:

1. Price – 100%	Each tenderer shall quote a fixed total price (not a percentage). The bid offering the lowest evaluated price will receive the maximum score of 100 points.
	Scoring Formula: Bid X = (Lowest Price / Bid X Price) × 80

6 Forms

6.1 Legal Identification form

Fill the form below:

OFFICIAL NAME 2				
ABREVIATION				
MAIN REGISTRATION	NUMBER 3 SECOND	ARY REGISTRATION NUMBER		
(if applicable)				
PLACE OF MAIN REGI	STRATION CITY	COUNTRY DATE OF MAIN REGISTRATION		
DD MM YYYY				
VAT NUMBER OFFICIA	AL ADDRESS			
POSTCODE P.O. BO	X CITY			
COUNTRY	PHONE	EMAIL		
DATE	STAMP			
SIGNATURE OF AUTHORISED				
REPRESENTATIVE				

National denomination and its translation in EN or FR if existing. NGO = Non-Governmental Organisation, to be completed if NFPO is indicated.

Registration number in the national register of companies. See table with the corresponding denomination by country.

6.2 Financial Identification form

ACCOUNT NAME (1)					
ADDRESS					
TOWN/CITY		POST CO	DE		
COUNTRY					
CONTACT					
TELEPHONE		TELEFAX			
E - MAIL		l			
BANK (2)					
NAME OF BANK					
ADDRESS (OF BRAN	NCH)				
TOWN/CITY		POST CO	DE		
COUNTRY		l			
ACCOUNT NUMBER	2				
IBAN (3)					
NAME OF	NAME &		FUNCTION		
SIGNATORIES	FORENA	ME			
COMMENTS:					
STAMP of BANK + DATE + SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNT					
SIGNATURE of BAN	K'S	HOLDER(Obligatory)			
REPRESENTATIVE (both are					
obligatory)					
		<u> </u>			

- (1) The name or title under which the account was opened and not the name of the authorised representative.
- (2) It is preferable to attach a copy of a recent bank statement. Please note that the bank statement must provide all the information indicated above under "ACCOUNT NAME" and "BANK". In this case, the bank's stamp and the signature of its representative are not required. The signature of the account holder is obligatory in all cases.
- (3) If the IBAN code (international bank account number) is applicable in the country where your bank is situated.

6.3 Subcontractors

Name and legal form	Address / Registered office	Regards

Last name, first name:
Function:
Date:
Signature:

6.4 Tender Forms – Prices

By submitting this tender, the tenderer commits to performing this public contract in conformity with the provisions of the Tender Specifications and explicitly declares accepting all conditions listed in the Tender Specifications and renounces any derogatory provisions such as his own general sales conditions.

The unit prices and the global prices for each item in the inventory are established relative to the value of these items with the total value of the tender. All general and financial costs as well as the profits are distributed between the various items in proportion to their weight.

The value-added tax on the total amount of the work is dealt with on a separate line below. The tenderer commits to performing the public contract in accordance with the provisions of the Tender Specifications for the following prices, given in euros and exclusive of VAT:

Lot 1

S/N	DESCRIPTION	PRICE EXCLUDING VAT (Euro)
1	TOTAL PRICE for the Lot 1: Drilling boreholes at 5 selected secondary schools and one TRC centre, and RUWASA water connection at one selected school in Kibondo district council.	
	Total without VAT	
	VAT 18%	

Lot 2

S/N	DESCRIPTION	PRICE EXCLUDING VAT (Euro)
1	TOTAL PRICE for the Lot 2: Drilling boreholes at 3 selected secondary school and RUWASA/KUWASA water connection at 17 selected schools from the following areas: Kigoma Municipal council, Kigoma District Council, Kasulu Town Council, and Kasulu District Council	
	Total without VAT	
	VAT 18%	

Tenderers are requested to follow the guidelines below when submitting this form:

• Tenderers shall only indicate the price for the Lot they are applying for. If a tenderer wishes to apply for both Lot 1 and Lot 2, they must fill out this form separately for each Lot and submit it in the corresponding tender file.

- The tenderers are requested to quote for the total amount of all tasks listed in the BOQ.
- Enabel is exempt from VAT in Tanzania. Tenderers are required to clearly indicate:
 - o The amount quoted exclusive of VAT
 - o The VAT amount on a separate line in the above table.
- The use of this form to quote for prices is mandatory.
- All prices should be quoted in Euros, <u>exclusive</u> of VAT, and <u>inclusive</u> of any applicable withholding tax and delivery costs.

Attention! The tenderer must complete and attach the Price-Schedule (BOQ) to Form 6.4. Certified true and sincere,

Handwritten original signature(s)	
Last name, first name:	
Function:	
Date:	
Signature:	

6.5 Price-schedule (BoQ)

The Bills of Quantities are provided as a separate document in Excel format.

6.6 Technical time reduction offer

Lot 1 Must be achieved in a maximum of 180 days	
Reduced duration proposed by contractor	

Note: Please attach a detailed work program indicating the timeline for all activities based on your proposed reduced duration.

Lot 2 Must be achieved in a maximum of 180 days	
Reduced duration proposed by contractor	

Note: Please attach a detailed work program indicating the timeline for all activities based on your proposed reduced duration.

6.7 References

Bidders must demonstrate experience in at least three (3) similar water supply projects, (borehole drilling or water distribution/connection) completed between 2020 and 2025. The tenderer must include in their offer a list of two (2) references for similar works related to borehole drilling, including water treatment. The tenderer must also demonstrate their capability to conduct groundwater surveys and install solar panels and solar water pumps. At least one of the references should reflect experience in water distribution and connection works

For each submitted project, the bidder must provide at least one completion certificate or client reference letter showing the contract value, project location and project details

Lot 1

Description of the main similar works performed and location	Amount involved	Relevant dates in the last 5 years	Name of the client

Handwritten original signature(s)

Last name, first name:

Function:			
Date:			
Signature:			
Lot1 2	,		
Description of the main similar works performed and location		Relevant dates in the last 5 years	Name of the client
Handwritten original signature(s)			
Last name, first name:			
Function:			
Date:			
Signature:			

6.8 Declaration on honour – exclusion grounds

Hereby, I / we, acting as legal representative(s) of above-mentioned tenderer declare that the tenderer is not in any of the following cases of exclusion:

- 1. The tenderer nor any of its directors was found guilty following an indefeasible **judgement** for one of the following offences:
 - 1° Involvement in a criminal organisation;
 - 2° corruption;
 - 3° fraud;
 - 4° Terrorist offence, offence linked to terrorist activities or incitement to commit such offence, collusion or attempt to commit such an offence
 - 5° money laundering or financing of terrorism
 - 6° child labour and other trafficking in human beings
 - 7° employment of foreign citizens under illegal status
 - 8° establishment or creation of a shell company.

The exclusions on the basis of this criterion apply for a 5-year term from the date of judgement.

- 2. The tenderer which fails to fulfil his obligations relating to the **payment of taxes or social security contributions** for an amount in excess of EUR 3 000, except if the tenderer can demonstrate that a contracting authority owes him one or more unquestionable and due debts which are free of all foreseeable liabilities. These debts are at least of an amount equal to the one for which he is late in paying outstanding tax or social charges;
- 3. When the tenderer is in a state of **bankruptcy**, **liquidation**, **cessation of activities**, **judicial reorganisation**, or has admitted bankruptcy, or is the subject of a liquidation procedure or judicial reorganisation, or in any similar situation resulting from a procedure of the same kind existing under other national regulations;
- 4. The tenderer <u>or one of its directors</u> has committed <u>serious professional misconduct which</u> <u>calls into question their integrity.</u>

The following are considered serious professional misconduct, among others:

- a. A breach of Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse June 2019
- b. A breach of Enabel's Policy regarding fraud and corruption risk management June 2019
- c. A breach of a regulatory provision in applicable local legislation regarding sexual harassment in the workplace
- d. The tenderer was seriously guilty of misrepresentation or false documents when providing the information required for verification of the absence of grounds for exclusion or the satisfaction of the selection criteria, or concealed this information
- e. Where Enabel has sufficient plausible evidence to conclude that the tenderer has committed acts, entered into agreements or entered into arrangements to distort competition.

The presence of this tenderer on one of Enabel's exclusion lists as a result of such an act/agreement/arrangement is considered to be sufficiently plausible an element.

- 5. When a conflict of interest cannot be remedied by other, less intrusive measures.
- 6. When **significant or persistent failures** by the tenderer were detected during the execution of an **essential obligation** incumbent on him in the framework of a previous public contract, a previous contract placed with a contracting authority, when these failures have given rise to measures right, damages or another comparable Failures to respect applicable obligations regarding environmental, social and labour rights under European Union law, national law, labour agreements or international provisions on social and labour rights considered 'significant'. environmental, are

The presence of the tenderer on the exclusion list of Enabel because of such a failure serves as evidence.

- 7. Restrictive measures have been taken vis-à-vis the tenderer with a view of ending violations of international peace and security such as terrorism, human-rights violations, the destabilisation of sovereign states and de proliferation of weapons of mass destruction.
- 8. The tenderer or one of its directors are on the lists of persons, groups or entities subject to United Nations, European Union or Belgian financial sanctions:

For the United Nations, the lists can be consulted at the following address: https://finances.belgium.be/fr/tresorerie/sanctions-financieres/sanctions-internationales-nations-unies

For the European Union, the lists can be consulted at the following address: : https://finances.belgium.be/fr/tresorerie/sanctions-financieres/sanctions-europ%C3%Agennes-ue

https://eeas.europa.eu/headquarters/headquarters-homepage/8442/consolidated-list-sanctions

https://eeas.europa.eu/sites/eeas/files/restrictive measures-2017-01-17-clean.pdf

For Belgium:

https://finances.belgium.be/fr/sur le spf/structure et services/administrations generales/tr%C 3%A9sorerie/contr%C3%B4le-des-instruments-1-2

9. If Enabel executes a project for another funder or donor, other grounds for exclusion may be added.

The tenderer formally declares being able, when asked and without delay, to provide the relevant certificates and other kinds of supporting documents, except if:

- a. Enabel can directly obtain the supporting documents concerned by consulting a national database in a Member State that is accessible for free, provided the tenderer has given the required information (website address, responsible authority for providing the information, specific reference of the documents) so Enabel can obtain these, with concomitant permission to access them;
- b. Enabel already has said documents.

 The tenderer formally agrees with Enabel accessing the supporting documents substantiating the information provided in this document.

Date	
Location	
Signature	

6.9 Integrity statement for the tenderers

Hereby, I / we, acting as legal representative(s) of above-mentioned tenderer, declare the following:

Neither members of administration or employees, or any person or legal person with whom the tenderer has concluded an agreement in view of performing the public contract, may obtain or accept from a third party, for themselves of for any other person or legal person, an advantage appreciable in cash (for instance, gifts, bonuses, or any other kind of benefits), directly or indirectly related to the activities of the person concerned for the account of Enabel.

The board members, staff members or their partners have no financial or other interests in the businesses, organisations, etc. that have a direct or indirect link with Enabel (which could, for instance, bring about a conflict of interests).

I have / we have read and understood the articles about deontology and anti-corruption included in the Tender Documents (see 1.7.), as well as Enabel's Policy regarding sexual exploitation and abuse of June 2019 and Enabel's Policy regarding fraud and corruption risk management of June 2019 and I / we declare fully endorsing and respecting these articles.

If above-mentioned public contract is awarded to the tenderer, I/we declare, moreover, agreeing with the following provisions:

In order to avoid any impression of risk of partiality or connivance in the follow-up and control of the performance of the public contract, it is strictly forbidden to the public contractor (i.e. members of the administration and workers) to offer, directly or indirectly, gifts, meals or any other material or immaterial advantage, of whatever value, to the employees of Enabel who are concerned, directly or indirectly, by the follow-up and/or control of the performance of the public contract, regardless of their hierarchical rank.

Any (public) contract will be terminated, once it appears that contract awarding, or contract performance would have involved the obtaining or the offering of the above- mentioned advantages appreciable in cash.

Any failure to comply with one or more of the deontological clauses will be considered as a serious professional misconduct which will lead to the exclusion of the contractor from this and other public contracts for Enabel.

The public contractor commits to supply, upon the demand of the contracting authority, any supporting documents related to the performance conditions of the contract. The contracting authority will be allowed to proceed to any control, on paperwork or on site, which it considers necessary to collect evidence to support the presumption of unusual commercial expenditure.

Finally, the tenderer takes cognisance of the fact that Enabel reserves the right to lodge a complaint with the competent legal incubicles for all facts going against this statement and that all administrative and other costs resulting are borne by the tenderer.

Signature preceded by	'read and approved',	in writing,	and indication	of name and	d function (of the person
signing:						

6.10 Other documents to be provided

Other documents to be provided

- **Power of attorney:** The Bidder shall include in his tender the power of attorney empowering the person signing the bid on behalf of the company, joint venture or consortium. In case of a consortium or a temporary association, the joint bid must specify the role of each member of the consortium. A group leader must be designated, and the power of attorney must be completed accordingly.
- **Incorporation certificate:** The Bidder shall include in his tender the incorporation certificate from the competent authority.
- VAT Registration certificate or TIN Certificate
- Criminal record certificate for the person mandated to commit for the firm
- Certification of clearance with regards to the payments of social security contributions: At the latest before award, the Bidder must provide a certification from the competent authority stating that he is in order with its obligations with regards to the payments of social security contributions that apply by law in the country of establishment.
- Certification of clearance with regards to the payments of applicable taxes: At the latest before award, the bidder must provide a recent certification (up to 6 months) from the competent authority stating that the bidder is in order with the payment of applicable taxes that apply by law in the country of establishment.

6.11 Documents to be submitted – exhaustive list

- 1. 6.1 Legal Identification form
- 2. 6.2 Financial Identification
- 3. 6.3 Tender form Prices
- 4. 6.4 Price schedule (BOQ)
- 5. 6.5 Declaration on Honour- Exclusion Grounds
- 6. 6.6 Integrity Statement
- 7. List of other documents to be provided (section 6.7)
- 8. Valid business registration document
- 9. Client references/certificates of completion from previous three similar works/projects.
- 10. CRB Certificate entailing a Class 5 (or above) civil contractor
- 11. Audited financial statements for the past 3 years
- 12. Site Engineers CVs
- 13. Site Technicians CVs.
- 14. Technical offer